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We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the 
business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major 
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Dodge City, Kansas, as of 
and for the year ended December 31, 2011, which collectively comprise the City's basic 
financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the 
responsibility of the City's management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these 
financial statements based on our audit. We did not audit the financial statements of the 
Dodge City Housing Authority and Special Events Center Special r~evenue Fund. Those 
financial statements were audited by other auditors whose report thereon has been 
furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for the Dodge 
City Housing Authority and Special Events Center Special Revenue Fund, is based on the 
reports of the other auditors. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America and the Kansas Municipal Audit Guide. Those standards and 
guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes 
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and 
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial 
statement presentation. We believe that our audit and the report of other auditors provide a 
reasonable basis for our opinions. 

In our opinion, based on our audit and the repori of other auditors, the financial statements 
referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of 
the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented 
component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the 
City of Dodge City, Kansas, as of December 31, 2011, and the respective changes in 
financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof and the respective budgetary 
comparison for the General Fund and the Sales Tax Fund for the year then ended in 
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
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Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 
management's discussion and analysis and budgetary compal'ison information as listed in 
the table of contents be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such 
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of the 
financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, 
economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required 
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods 
of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with 
management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other 
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not 
express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited 
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any 
assurance. 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements 
that collectively comprise the City of Dodge City, Kansas' financial statements as a whole. 
The combining and individual non major fund financial statements are presented for 
purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the financial statements. The 
combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements are the responsibility of 
management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and 
other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been 
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and 
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly 
to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or 
to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the 
information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial 
statements taken as a whole. 

August 9, 2012 
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CITY OF DODGE CITY 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED) 

December 31, 2011 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

Our discussion and analysis of the City of Dodge City's financial performance provides an 
overview of the City's financial activities for the year ended December 31, 2011. It should 
be read in conjunction with the City's basic financial statements, listed in the table of 
contents. 

USING THIS ANNUAL REPORT 

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements. The government-wide 
statements consist of the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities. These 
provide information about the activities of the City as a whole and present a longer-term 
view of the City's finances. Fund financial statements follow the government-wide 
statements. For governmental activities, these statements tell how the services of the City 
were financed in the short term as well as what remains for future spending. Fund financial 
statements report the City's operations in more detail than the government-wide statements 
by providing information about the City's most significant funds. 

The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities 

One of the most important questions asked about the City's finances is this: "Is the City as 
a whole beller off or worse off as a result of the year's activities?" The Statement of Net 
Assets and the Statement of Activities report information about the City as a whole and 
about its activities in a way that helps provide answers to this question. These statements 
include all assets and liabilities using the accrual basis of accounting, which is similar to the 
accounting used by most private-sector companies. All of the current year's revenues and 
expenses are taken into account regardless of when cash is received or paid. 

These two statements report the City's net assets and the changes in them. The net assets 
represent the difference between assets and liabilities. Net assets are one way to measure 
the financial position of the City. Over time, increases or decreases in the City's net assets 
are one indicator of whether its financial health is improving or deteriorating. Other factors, 
such as changes in the property tax base, and economic conditions at the state and local 
level must also be considered when assessing the overall financial health of the City 

In the Statement of Net Assets and in the Statement of Activities, the information is divided 
into three kinds of activities: 

e Governmental activities-Many of the City's basic services are reported here, 
including general government, public safety, public works, culture and recreation and 
community services. Property taxes, sales tax, franchise fees, service charges and 
fees, other types of governmental revenues and taxes, and federal and state grants 
finance most of these activities. 

• Business-type-activities-The City charges a fee to residents to cover the cost of 
utility services it provides. These services are water, wastewater, solid waste and 
drainage utilities. 

• Component units-The City includes three separate legal entities in its report the 
Dodge City Public Library, the Dodge City-Ford County Development Corporation, 
and the Dodge City Housing Authority. Although legally separate, these component 
units are important because of their relationship with the City. 
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USING THIS ANNUAL REPORT (CONTINUED) 

To assist in the understanding of the Statement of Activities some additional explanation is 
given. Of particular interest is the format that is significantly different from a typical 
Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes ill Fund Balance. The expenses are 
listed in the first column with revenues from that particular program reported to the right. 
The result is a net (expense)/revenue. The reason for this kind of format is to highlight the 
relative financial burden of each of the functions on the City's taxpayers. It also identifies 
how much each function draws from the general revenues and how much it is self-financing 
through fees and grants. 

Fund Financial Statements 

Our analysis of the City's major funds follows in this discussion. The fund financial 
statements provide detailed information about the most significant funds - not the City as a 
whole. Some funds are required to be established by state law or by contract. However, 
the City Commission establishes many other funds to help control and manage money for 
particular purposes, or to show that it is meeting legal responsibilities for using certain 
taxes, grants, and other money. The City's two kinds of funds - governmental and 
proprietary - use different accounting approaches. 

• Governmental funds-Many of the City's basic services are reported in 
governmental funds. The focus is on how money flows into and out of those funds 
and on the balances left at year-end that are available for spending. These funds 
are reported using an accounting method called modified accrual accounting, which 
measures cash and all other financial assets that can be readily converted to cash. 
The governmental fund statements provide a detailed short-term view of the City's 
general government operations and the basic services it provides. Governmental 
fund information helps to determine whether there are more or fewer financial 
resources that can be spent in the near future to finance the City's programs. A 
reconciliation between the governmental funds reported here and the overall 
governmental activities column of the Statement of Net Assets is provided. 

• Proprietary funds-The City maintains two types of proprietary funds. Enterprise 
funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in 
the government-wide financial statements. Internal service funds are an accounting 
device used to accumulate and allocate costs internally among the City's various 
functions. The City uses an internal service fund to account for its vehicle and 
equipment maintenance activities. Proprietary funds are reported using the same 
accounting approach that all activities use in the Statement of Net Assets and in the 
Statement of Activities. 

Since the Enterprise funds use the same accounting approach in all statements, no 
reconciliation is necessary among the statements. 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data 
provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. 
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THE CITY AS A WHOLE 

g0lf.8inmellt-Wide Statements_~ Over:\iLE:''{I' 

The City's overall financial position and operations for the past two years are summarized 
as follows based on the information included in the government-wide financial statements: 

Current and other assets S 28,"141,945 S 37,365,190 S 10,268,541 S 5,669,681 S 39,010.485 S 43,034,871 
Capital assets ____ 1.~j.'--9..§.?.~Q,;~~ ___ ,.J.2!i,.825A§2 ... _. 68 98],865 .~._._J3:Q,}Q.$_,.fQ.~. ___ .t~_:U)2rLQ?i1 .~_lr&,_L:}_'t§§§ 

Total assets 

Long-term liabilities 
Other liabilities 
Deferred revenue 

Total liabilities 

Net assets: 
Invested in capital 

assets net of 
related deb! 

Restricted 
Unrestricted 

Total net assets 

___ J.~IQ~.J)_QQ 

62,897,755 
2,342,326 

. __ . __ . LQJ .. M?=.1. 

... _._T?2~>Lo.;; 

63,247,554 
9,741,866 

" ___ ._ 8 460 11.!d 

~-~,,-_,-,~J,,_1!l~-.. 9,~_~ 

___ ~2.0.65~ .~ ._~...z§}2 .. ~22Q§ 

63,63"1,634 38,820,765 
7,005,388 1,370,984 

_ .. _ .. _EUDLH} 
------.~--~--. 

77 480 865 .... _.1Q,,191.749 

66,708,741 25,148,101 
16,884,621 1,486,562 

_-----'L11i5"11§ 7410994 

S ..... §S,[O$J90 $ . .-."9,,,4.,QAQ_J:l,QZ 

____ Q.Q,£3.ZlLlliH __ ,2J..SIl.§.L405 ~£~Ll6._~t~.}] 

32,771,226 101,"118,520 96,408,860 
3,471,784 3,713,310 10,477,172 

. ...... " .. ".---~,,~ . ___ l.QJ~d?1 __ J\§;ll§1" 

__ ._"3.213...2.1Q .. __ L1£451_l1~9. ..... __ tn.?2_~.§1f.i 

27,537,978 88,395,655 94,246,719 
1,618,191 11,228,428 18,502,812 

579 705 .. __ 12&1.l.162 2.696 133 

$ ..... 29, 1'}5,8.7.4 ~ .. JJ)),-,A,~,Q.f.§~ s lJ 5.,11.§.&!H 

For the years ended December 31,2011 and 2010, net assets changed as follows: 

Beginning net assets S 85,709,790 $ 93,940,5'14 S 29.735,874 S 29.813.073 :3 11:),445.664 S 123,753.647 
Prior period adjustment 37.9)57 329,751 
Increase (decrease) in 

net assets .. __ J1LZ§9J .. ~)) ... ~ m_"f;tQ"Z~9.} ~ .. ~_2!.~,,?JLQ~~ ,, __ JZLJ.~_~} ____ JZ51Q,JJ?m . __ . ___ .J§.30L~83) 

Ending net assets 

Governmental current assets decreased because cash was spent for the construction of the 
Special Events Center. Bonds were issued in 2009. The bond proceeds were entirely 
spent in 2011 as well as additional cash in the Sales Tax Projects Fund to finalize this 
project. Capital assets decreased slightly due to the normal depreciation on capital 
infrastructure. This depreciation expense exceeded the addition of capital assets. 
Consequently, liabilities decreased because the special events center construction was 
complete and those accounts payable items were paid. 

Current assets increased in the business-type activities from 2011 to 2012 because 
National Beef made a settlement of cash in lieu of water rights for an agreement signed in 
2003. Capital assets increased because of the construction in progress for the Water 
Reclamation facility north of Dodge City Liabilities also increased because of the Water 
Loan from KDHE to fund the construction of the Water Reclamation facility. 

5 



THE CITY AS A WHOLE (CONTINUED) 

~ __ ~_§.ovCJnm~!!.!9.L?ctivities . ______ LQlC).LP.Ij!_lJ,?_!y_9Q~~LJ}!ns?:nL 
----.221.1.__ ....... 2JlJQ __ .... __ ..2DJL__ _ ___ .2oJQ. 

Hevenue: 
Program revenue: 

Charges for services $ 4,010,920 S 2,785,021 S 10.583,508 S 9,655,491 S 14,602,428 S 12,440,512 
Operating grants 2,405,287 1,782,813 827,650 835,343 3,232,931 2,618,156 
Capital grants 3,284,543 2,386,268 4,124,760 471,145 7,409,303 2,85"1,413 

General revenue: 
Property taxes, levied 

for general purposes 5,691,144 5,279,479 5,691,144 5.2l9,479 
Property taxes and special 

assessments levied 
for debt service 2,817,237 2,516.927 2,817,237 2,516,927 

Sales taxes 9,850,819 9,081,330 9,850,819 9,081,330 
Franchise taxes 1,728,289 1.739.248 1,728.289 1,739.248 
Expanded lottery tax 637.097 596,669 637.097 596.669 
Grants and contributions 175,691 302.827 175,691 302.827 
Gain 011 assets (3,525) (29.109) (3,525) (29.109) 
Investment earnings 37.970 59.832 93.330 98.378 131.300 158.210 
Transfers 123,573 132.033 (1,241,525) (1.233.690) (1.117.952) (1,101.657) 
Miscellaneous .. ~.~ __ $..77 90~ 415325 - _",,_._. ___ LJQ~ _ .. __ 5"17907 _ ..... 4.l§.,430 

~.~--.----~. 

Total revenue ._ ..... 1134MZZ __ .. 2LQE.772 ...... ,14 .. }S4.198 _.9,79M_63 .. __ ~42732 675 __ .~JE.§AlQ 
Program expenses; 

General government 2.826.623 2,295,744 2,826,623 2,295,744 
Public safety 8,408.399 1\.000.440 8,408.399 8.000.440 
Public works 2,450,634 2,400,526 2,450,634 2,400,526 
Culture and recreation 10,311,154 9.092.194 10.311.154 9.092.194 
Community services 1.091.339 1,036,159 1.091.339 1,036,159 
Capital projects 210,567 210,567 
Indirect depreciation 7.812.276 9,960,045 7.812.276 9,960,045 
interest on long-term debt 2.497.681 2,523,448 2.497.681 2,523,448 
Water 3.428.696 3,345,328 3.428,696 3,345,328 
Wastewater 1\,969,10:5 4.492.300 4,969,105 4,492,300 
Solid waste 1,717.211 1,765,928 1,717,211 1,765,928 
Drainage .-,.-.. ""-,~,~,~"'-~."'~ .. ~. . ~ .-.--.. --~-- __ ~,.160 __ ....1g306 ..1§.2J.§Q __ '"_-" ______ ~.z.;Lm0. 

Total expenses .~ .. .9'§.&O~L~U .~ ___ .}§_dQitli§§ . _ .. 1.Q.1Q4,Jn _____ -----2,§Z.~,~§2 ....... .49"'.Q12JB45 ______ 1§~1§':L1J] 

Increase (decrease) in 
net assets :t, .. ,"CL2§9,J,9P) ~L- (8.23Q,7.84) $ ,3.980.Q21) :3 ,., .. , .. ([Z.19g) $,,, . GS,Q.IZQ) $,--- .(§.)"OZ.91P.) 

The increase in charges for services from 2010 to 2011 was due to the addition of the 
special events center and operation of that venue. This is program revenue that the City 
had not received in the past. All use type taxes increased generously. The sales tax 
increased 8.5%. the expanded lottery tax increased 9% and other tax receipts increased as 
well. The most notable changes in the prowam expenses were: the culture and recreation 
expenses increased because of the addition of the special events center; public safety 
increases were due to positions at full staff in the police department; general government 
expenses increased because of the expenditures for capital maintenance items. The 
indirect depreciation decreased as several large infrastructure items were fully depreciated 
as of the end of 2010. 

Government~1 Activities 

The most significant governmental activities are general government. public safety. public 
works, culture and recreation and community services. The main sources of revenue are 
property taxes. sales tax, franchise fees. charges for services, other governmental revenue 
and taxes. and operating grants and contributions. Total governmental revenues for the 
year were $31,384,477, and total expenses were $35.608,673. The percentage increase in 
revenue was 15.77%. while the total increase in expense was .85%. 

The following chalis reflect a comparison among all the governmental sources of revenue 
and expense categories for the years ended December 31,2011,2010,2009.2008 and 
2007 based on the information included in the government-wide financial statements 
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THE CITY AS A WHOLE (CONTINUED) 
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THE CITY AS A WHOLE (CONTINUED) 

l2_us i n e 52::I'LpeA ctlv i ti e s 

The business-type activities of the City are the water, wastewater, solid waste, and 
drainage utilities. These activities derive most of their revenue from charges for services. 
Total business-type program revenues are $15,535,918 and operating expenses are 
$10,404,172. 

The charts below compare program revenues and changes in net assets for the years 
ended December 31,2011,2010,2009,2008 and 2007 based on the information included 
in the government-wide financial statements. 

Business-Type Activities - Program Revenues 
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THE CITY'S FUND BALANCES 

GoVe[llment£i. Activities 

As the City completed the year, the govemmental funds reported a combined fund balance of 
$18,947,222, as reflected in the Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds. This balance 
represents a decrease of $4,046,112 (18%) from last year's ending balance. This decrease 
in fund balance is primarily in the Special Events Center Project Fund and Sales Tax Fund 
due to construction expenditures. Cash balances in other governmental funds remained 
steady. 

A comparison of fund balances based on information included in the fund financial 
statements is presented below: 

10,000, 

Genera! 

Governmental Fund Balances 

Sales Tax Debt Service 

I~ 2007 [J 2008 [J 2009 rn 201 0 D20iiJ 

Other Governmental 
Funds 

Following is an analysis of General Fund and Sales Tax Fund revenue and expenditures 
compared to the previous year: 

The percentage of revenue that funded the General Fund in 2011 is sales tax at 34.22%, 
propeliy tax at 30.07%, franchise fees at 13.52%, licenses, charges and rentals at 9.73%, 
fines at 8.97% with other revenues representing the remainder of the funding. General Fund 
revenue increased from 2010 by 7.92%. This increase was from taxes and fines. 

Property tax collections remain very stable. The chart below lists the percentage of property 
tax collected compared to the amount that was levied. 

Year 

2006 
2007 
2008 
2009 
2010 
2011 

% of Property Tax Collected compared 
to the amount Levied 

97.41% 
96.41% 
96.73% 

100.18% 
96.27% 

101.71% 
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% of Property Tax Collected plus 
Delinquent amount compared to the 

amount Levied 

99.63% 
97.92% 
9949% 

102.14% 
98.5% 

10446% 



THE CITY'S FUND BALANCES (CONTINUED) 

go v QfllllJc;llt§Lf:\c;tivitiE?_§J co nUIJlJgg) 

The Sales Tax Fund is funded primarily by sales tax and partially by user fees and charges 
The overall revenue in the sales tax fund increased from 2010 by 7.57% because of sales 
tax increase and an increase in charges for services. 
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BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS 

The governmental funds included in the published budget are the General Fund, Special 
Liability, Library, Ubral-y Employee Benefits, Building, Sales Tax, Convention and Visitols, 
Special Streets and Highways, Special Park and Recreation, Special Alcohol and Drug, 
Alcohol and Drug Safety Action, All 4 Fun, and GO Bond and Interest Funds. Budgeted 
business-type funds are as follows: Water, Wastewater, Solid Waste and Drainage Utility 
Funds. The internal service funds are the Vehicle Maintenance Fund and Medical Insurance 
Fund. 

The statutes allow for the governing body to increase the originally adopted budget for 
previously unbudgeted increases in revenue other than ad valorem property taxes. Budgets 
were amended for the following funds: 

Sales Tax-Special Projects 
Convention & Visitors 
Special Alcohol & Drug Fund 
Drainage Fund 
Vehicle Maintenance 
SMPC Trust 

Original 
budget 

$ 4,543,774 
782,394 

80,000 
363,524 
267,475 

66,000 

Amended 
budget 

$ 10,611,540 
882,394 
108,000 
680,000 
312,500 
110,000 

The following charts show expenditures by category compared with the published budget for 
the current year. 

General Fund Comparison to Budget 2011 
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CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION 

The City has invested $193.9 million in capital assets (net of depreciation). Approximately 
67% of this investment is related to governmental activities and includes infrastructure, 
buildings, equipment and land. Governmental capital assets changed little, while capital 
assets held for business-type activities have increased 14% from the previous year. Capital 
assets held by the City at the end of the current and previous year is summarized as follows: 

Capital Assets 
(Net of Depreciation, in Thousands) 

Governmental activities 13usiness-t'I.Qe activities Total 
2011 .• - __ 2QN_ 2011 __ I01Q_ __ 2011 _ __ 2P.tL ... 

Land $ 5,582 $ 5,582 S 1,527 $ 1,514 $ 7,109 $ 7,096 
Buildings and 

improvements 49,376 18,497 4,824 1,948 54,200 20,445 
Macllinery and 

equipment 12,628 2,917 1,611 1,900 14,239 4,817 
Infrastructure 57,107 56,048 35,870 36,000 92,977 92,048 
Water rights 3,223 3,284 3,223 3,284 
Construction in 

progress _. __ ......lli .... 4.2.,]?J. 21,929 15,663 22203 58,444 

Totals ;ii .... . J.~'L99.7. $ J"f5,.~?~ $ ......... §fl.,~.8A. $ . (lQ,,3Q9 l' J.\1~,g91 .t. .1 . .56,1:.14 

The City of Dodge City has a five-year capital improvement program, which includes the 
street program, and a five year municipal equipment replacement program. In each program 
capital improvements are completed annually, equipment is scheduled for replacement, and 
street improvements are completed annually. The additions to the capital assets in the 
governmental funds are a result of improvements scheduled during the year. The Special 
Events Center, parking lot and ali equipment in that facility were added as buildings and 
improvements and machinery and equipment, thus deleted from Construction in Progress, 
Vehicles were replaced according to the schedule in the Police, Parks and Recreation and 
Public Works Departments and a new Class A fire truck was purchased for the Fire Public 
Works Department. Street improvements added include: construction of Corral Way at 
Avenue A, construction of Brier Street, Avenue H to Avenue K; 14th Avenue to Wright Street; 
reconstruction of Wyatt Earp, 14th Avenue to Matt Down Road; and reconstruction of Cedar 
Street, 3rd Avenue to 4th Avenue, The rotary beacon project at the airport was complete. 
Other capital additions include Mariah Hills Clubhouse basement remodel and the addition of 
outfield portable fencing at Legends Field. Capital additions for the business-type activities 
included: the development of 4 water wells; construction of waterlines on Brier Street, 
Estancia Subdivision and Wagon Wheel Subdivision; the construction of sewer lines in 
Wagon Wheel Subdivision, Brier Street, Estancia Subdivision and near Comanche School; 
the replacement of a wet well; and the replacement of the anaerobic covers at the 
Wastewater Treatment Plant south of town. Construction in progress continues to increase 
because of the construction of the water reclamation facility north of Dodge City. 

Additional information about the City's capital assets is presented in Note F of the financial 
statements. 

Long-Term Liabilities 

At the end of the current year, the City had long-term liabilities related to governmental 
activities of $63,594,271. This includes $19,340,000 in general obligation bonds, $3,430,000 
temporary notes, $307,207 in capital lease obligations, $337,500 in notes payable, $815,266 
in compensated absences, and $39,365,000 in revenue bonds. 
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CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION (CONTINUED) 

L, 0 rJJ1:J e rm __ L ia b ilil~.s (co n ti n lJ_E2il 

The total amount of debt related to business-type activities at the end of the current year was 
$43,961,956, which was an increase of $11,054,837 from the previous year of $32,907,120_ 
This increase was due to a Kansas Department of Health and Environment water loan to 
fund the construction of the Water Reclamation Facility_ 

The debt position of the City is summarized below and is more fully analyzed in Note I of the 
financial statements 

Long-Term Obligations 

Gove r n me Jlta 1.2..f!ivit i es ~ .. _ Bus i n~'§'§:!YQ.© ... ,§'9Jly_ltlG_L _____ ,~ __ . ____ ._.J:Q!.91 _____ ._,~. __ "_. __ _ 
____ 2011-__ _ ______ 201L___~11__ _ ____ 2QJJL___ _ __ ]QIL~___ __1019 

19,340,000 
307,207 
337,500 
814,564 

General obligation bonds S 
Capital lease obligations 
Notes payable 
Compensated absences 
Revenue bonds 39,365,000 

_=34=30000 Other obligations 

Totals 

$ 21,365,000 S 
16,325 

367,500 
817,852 126,191 

40,015,000 15,110,000 
___ 1 750.QOD _._ 28 72~J65 

s 

135,894 
16,080,000 

__ 16691 2<ill 

S 19,340,000 
307,207 
337,500 
940)55 

54,475,000 
__ .. _~~7"§.Q 

S 21,365,000 
16,325 

367,500 
953,746 

56,095,000 
_-1M1L226 

RELEVANT CURRENT ECONOMIC FACTORS, DECISIONS AND CONDITIONS 

Expenses, such as employee costs, utilities, and commodities continue to increase, The use 
type taxes, including the sales tax, transient guest tax and expanded lottery tax, increased by 
more that 8%, This is more than average, Other revenue sources have remained stable, 
The City continues to maintain quality services, The General Fund fund balance increased 
from 2010, 

The City of Dodge City has applied for and received a STAR Bond designation from the State 
of Kansas, This will assist in attracting retail development to Dodge City, This will entail a 
retail district on the west part of town as well as the historic downtown district The City 
continues to work on the Main Street project which may increase the viability of the 
downtown district. The City continues to work on several housing projects to improve the 
number and quality of the housing stock in Dodge City and authorizes incentives when 
necessary, Because of wind farm development in Ford County and the possibility of oil and 
gas development, the community continues to see considerable growth, Three new motels 
are currently either under construction or in the development stages, 

The City of Dodge City continues its efforts to be the entertainment capital of Southwest 
Kansas, Because of the %% sales tax authorized in 1997, the four projects on the ballot 
have been completed, are operational and have proved successful. These projects are: a 
motor sport race track; a softball/baseball complex and other athletic fields in the community; 
the air conditioning of the Civic Center; and a special events center. The City continues to 
enhance the original projects and has added onto these facilities with additional sports fields 
to appeal to all types of sports venues, With the addition of the State of Kansas's first 
destination casino which has been operational since December of 2009, the area west of 
Dodge City continues to grow, The Special Events Center is located adjacent to the casino, 
and a hotel opened in early 2011 at the same location. This whole area will be an 
entertainment district for Dodge City and Southwest Kansas. 

As Dodge City and Ford County continues to grow, the City and its partners ar-e working orl 
the downtown area, the housing and recruitment of retail and industry to expand on what we 
have and to diversify the tourism and agriculture industry. 
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CONTACTING THE CITY'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 

This financial report is designed to pr'ovide various interested parties with a general overview 
of the City's finances and to show the City's accountability for the money it receives. If you 
have questions about this repori or need additional financial information, contact the City 
Clerk and Finance Officer, 806 Second Avenue, Dodge City, Kansas 67801. 

The separately issued financial statements of the component units may be obtained from 
administrative offices as follows: 

Dodge City Public Ubrary 
1001 Second Avenue 
Dodge City, KS 67801 

Dodge City/Ford County Development Corporation 
311 W. Spruce 
Dodge City, KS 67801 

Dodge City Housing Authority 
407 E. Bend 
Dodge City, KS 67801 
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BASIC FiNANCIAL STATEMENTS 



AS$.sTS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Investments 
Property taxes receivable 
Receivables, net 
Due from other governrnents 
Inventories 
Notes receivable 
Prepaid insurance 
Restricted cash and investrnents 
Capital assets, net 
Other noncurrent assets 

Total assets 

~ I AlllL1TIf§ 
Accounts payable 
Salaries and benefits payable 
Accrued interest payable 
Other accrued liabilities 
Deferred revenue 
Temporary note prernium 
Cornpensated absences payable 
Noncurrent liabilities: 

Due within one year 
Due in rnore than one year 

Total liabilities 

NETAS$ETS 
Invested in capital assets, 

net of related debt 
Restricted (expendable): 

Debt service 
Construction 
Projects 
Housing Authority 
Prospects and housing 

Unrestricted 

Total net assets 

Total liabilities and net assets 

CITY OF DODGE CITY, KANSAS 

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 

December 31, 2011 

Governmental 
activities 

$ 6,027,158 

6,613,021 
1,696,418 

82,871 
79,798 

12,962,070 
124,967,055 

1,280,609 

$153,709,000 

$ 990,800 
152,606 
383,654 

7,019,324 

815,266 

6,134,269 
56,763,486 

72,259,405 

63,247,554 

4,848,576 
766,524 

4,126,766 

8,460,175 

$153,709,000 

Primary government 
Business-type 

$ 

$ 

$ 

activities Total 

6,506,583 $ 12,533,741 

6,613,021 
703,406 2,399,824 

82,871 
430,654 510,452 

2,295,728 15,257,798 
68,983,865 193,950,920 

332,170 1,612,779 

79,252,406 $232,961,406 

859,345 S , 1,850,145 
26,115 178,721 

324,682 708,336 
31,376 31,376 

7,019,324 
3,273 3,273 

126,193 941,459 

7,553,260 13,687,529 
36,282,505 93,045,991 

45,206,749 117 ,466, 154 

25,148,101 88,395,655 

1,486,562 6,335,138 
766,524 

4,126,766 

7,410,994 15,871,169 

34,045,657 115,495,252 

$ 79,252.406 $232,961,406 

Tile accompanying notes are all integral part of tile basic financial statements 
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Component 

$ 

$ 

$ 

units 

1,313,039 
567,362 

52,280 

21,497 
178,470 

16,441 

9,828,493 

11,977,582 

95,976 

556,611 
28,566 
58,236 

110,780 

762,000 

1,612,169 

9,066,493 

215,453 
133,623 
949,844 

10,365,413 .---------

S 11,977,582 



CITY OF DODGE CITY, KANSAS 

Functions/programs 

Primary government: 
Governmental activities: 

General government 
Public safety 
Public works 

---

Culture and recreation 
Community services 
Capital projects 
Indirect depreciation 
Interest on long-term debt 

Total governmental activities 

Business-type activities: 
Water 
Wastewater 
Solid waste 
Drainage 

Total business-type activities 

Total primary government 

Component units 

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

Year ended December 31,2.011 

Program revenue 
Operating Capital 

Charges for grants and grants and 
bpenses services contributions contributions 

$ 2,826,622 S 166,098 $ 583,149 $ 
8,408,399 1,393,554 24,326 120,093 
2,450,634 202,099 906,830 3,080,299 

10,311,154 2,172,189 116,903 84,151 
1,091,339 84,980 774,079 

210,567 
7,812,276 
2,497,681 

35,608,672 4,018,920 2,405,287 3,284,543 
-,--------

3,428,696 4,553,789 248,295 3,933,941 
4,969,105 4,074,508 579,355 177,025 
1,717,211 1,762,354 13,794 

289,160 192,857 
.0""_- --

10,404,172 10,583,508 ____ ~2'l ,650 _ 4,124,760 

$ 46,012,844 $ 14,602,428 $ 3,232,937 $ 7,409,303 

$ 3,736,084 $ 898,766 $ 1,05'1,424 $ 584,72'1 

General revenues: 
Taxes: 

Property taxes, levied for general purposes 
Property taxes and special assessments, levied for debt service 
Sales taxes 
Franchise taxes 
Expanded lottery taxes 

Grants and contributions not restricted to specific programs 
Gain on assets 
Investment earnings 
Transfers 
Miscellaneous 

Total general revenues, special itel11s, and transfers 

Change in net assets 

Net assets, beginning 
Pnor period adjustments 

Net assets - ending 

The accornpanying notes are an integl-al part of the basic financial staterrlents. 
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Changes in net assets 
Primary governrnent 

Governmental Business-type Component 
activities activities Total units 

~==:::'---- ------- -------

5,691,144 5,691,144 
2,811,237 2,817,237 
9,850,819 9,850,819 
U28,289 1,728,289 

637,097 637,097 
175,691 175,691 

(3,525) (3,525) (8,571) 
37,970 93,330 131,300 14,458 

123,573 (1,241,525) (1,117,952) 1,117,952 
577,907 577,907 23,379 

~c639,727 (1,151,720) 20,488,007 1,147,218 

(4,260,195) 3,980,026 (280,169) (47,949) 

85,709,790 29,735,874 115,445,664 10,413,362 
329,757 329,757 ------- --",.,----- --------- ---._----

$ 81,449,595 $ 34,045,657 S 115,495,252 $ 10,365,413 
:::.==--= ==-.....::= 



CITY OF DODGE CITY, KANSAS 

BALANCE SHEET-GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

Casll and investments 
Property taxes receivable 
Sales taxes receivable 
Due from otller governments 
Otller receivables 
Due from otller funds 
Inventories 

ASSET~ 

Restricted cash and investments 

Total assets 

December 31,2011 

I)AEHI,.lTIES AND 1=,l)J1L:LBAlot\NQI';§ 

Liabilities: 
Accounts payable 
Payroll liabilities 
Due to otller funds 
Deferred revenue 

Total liabilities 

Fund balances: 
Nonspendable: 

Endowment 
Inventory 
Long-term receivables 

Restricted: 
Debt service 
Capital projects 
Grants 

Committed: 
Projects 

Assigned: 
Encumbrances 
Other capital expenditures 
Community service and promotion 
Other purposes 
Designated for subsequent year's expenditures 

Unassigned 

Total fund balances 

Total liabilities and fund balances 

$ 

$ 

$ 

General 

600,086 
3,047,982 

386,989 

454,687 
85,350 
33,734 

4,608,828 

516,712 
137.118 

3,04'1,982 
.~~~--.. --

3,702,412 

33,734 

12,219 

704,975 
155,488 

906,416 ---
$ 4,608,828 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the baSIC financial statements. 
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$ 

$ 

$ 

Sales tax 

386,989 

765 

3,761,009 

4,148,763 

11,314 
1,937 

4,135,512 

4,135,512 

$ 4,148,763 



$ 

$ 

GO bond 
and interest 

1,679,096 

672,689 

2,351,785 

1,679,096 

_--,1c.::' 6 7 9,096 

672,689 

672,689 

$ 2,351.785 

Special events 
center 

revenue bonds 

$ 

4,175,887 

$ 4,175,887 

$ 

4,175,887 

~----,--

4,175,887 ------
$ 4,175,887 

Special events 
center 

project fund 

$ 

325,017 

$ 325,017 

s 

29,292 

29,292 

295,725 

295,725 

$ 325,017 

Other 
governmental 

funds 

$ 8,664,589 
1,885,943 

135,411 
414,448 

29,292 
33,539 

777,468 

$ 11,940,690 

$ 452,950 
11,618 
85,350 

____ 2,629,779 

3, 179,697 
----, 

100,000 

155,946 

735,188 
31,675 

331,029 
4,695,076 

20,429 
245,793 

2,555,608 
(109,751) 

8,760,993 

$ 11,940,690 

Total 
governmental 

funds 

$ 9,264,675 
6,613,021 

773,97ll 
135,411 
869,900 
114,642 
67,273 

9,712,070 

$ 27,550,970 

$ 980,976 
151,273 
114,642 

7,356,857 
'-'~~'--'-

8,603,7~s... 

100,000 
33,734 

155,946 

4,848,576 
1,030,913 

31,675 

4,135,512 

343,248 
4,695,076 

20,429 
245,793 

3,260,583 
45,737 

--'-'---'---, 

18,94n22 
-'-"~--'~-

$ 27,550,970 



CITY OF DODGE CITY, KANSAS 

F-I[CONCILIATION OF TH[ f3ALANC[ SHEEr OF THE' GOV[RNME:NTAL FUNDS 
TO TH[ STAT[M[NT 01: NU ASS[TS 

December 31,2011 

Tota[ fund balances on the balance sheet 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net 
assets are different because of the following: 

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial 
resources and therefore are not reported in the fund financial 
statements. 

Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current-period 
expenditures and therefore are not reported in the fund financial 
statements or they are reported as deferred. 

Certain liabilities are not required to be accrued in the fund financial 
statements. 

Only the current portion of compensated absences is S[10wn as 
an expenditure in the fund financial statements. 

[conomic development revolving loans are considered defe'Ted 
revenue in the fund financial statements. 

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and 
payable in the current period and therefore are not reported in 
the fund financial statements. 

Internal service funds me used by management to charge the 
costs of certain activities, such as vehicle maintenance, 
to individual funds. The assets and liabilities of tile internal 
service fund are included in governmental activities in the 
statement of net assets. 

Rounding. 

Net assets of governmental activities 
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$ 18,947,222 

124,96/,055 

1,280,609 

(383,654 ) 

(815,266) 

33/,533 

(62,897,755) 

13,849 

2 

$ 81,449,595 



CITY OF DODGE CITY, KANSAS 

STATEMENT OF REVEcNUE, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

I~evenue: 

Taxes 
Intergovernmental 
Licenses, fees and permits 
Charges for services 
Insurance recovery 
Rentals 
Fines and forfeitures 
Investment earnings 
Contribution from property owners 
Miscellaneous 

Total revenue 

Expenditures: 
Current 

General government 
Public safety 
Public works 
Culture and recreation 
Community services 
Capital projects 
Debt service: 

Principal 
Interest and commissions 

Total expenditures 

Year Gnded Decembel· 31,2011 

Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenditures 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Bond issue proceeds 
Transfers in 
Transfers out 
Transfers to component units 

Total other financing 
sources and uses 

Net change in fund 
balances 

Fund balances, beginning of year 

Fund balances, end of year 

General 

$ 9,945,293 
181,150 
209,540 

1,031,096 

212,493 
1,146,098 

6,407 

___ ~ ___ !5.1.2~~ 

$ 

12,783,416 

1,391,612 
7,987,210 
1,438,046 
2,470,725 

405,179 

13,692,772 

(909,356) 

1,331,525 
(163,500) 

1,168,025 

258,669 

647,747 

906,416 

Tile accompanylllg notes are 311 Illtegral part of the baSIC financial statements 
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Sales tax 

$ 5,477,453 

73,358 

6,990 

7,304 

8,700 

5,573,805 

3,030,728 

3,030,728 

2,543,077 

50,000 
(7,285,601) 

___ .G235,601) 

(4692,524) 

8,828,036 
..... -.~.-.. ~.~---. 

S 4,.135,512 



S 

GO bond 
and interest 

2,817,237 

2,817,237 

20,7 41 

2,025,000 
742,312 

2,788,053 

29,184 

1,680,000 
450,000 

(1,659,259) 

470,741 ---

499.925 

112,764 

$ 6"12,689 

Special events 
center 

revenue bonds ---

$ 

------~ 

--.-------

650,000 
1,769,964 

2,419,964 

(2,419,964) 

2,636,702 

2,636,702 

Special events 
center 

project fund 

$ 

41 

41 
.-~-. 

3,577,203 

3,577,203 

(3,577,162) 

Other 
governmental 

$ 

funds 

1,847,506 
2,635,072 

1,339,345 
421,537 

24,218 
520,000 
223,441 

7,011,119 

1,351,483 
358,562 

2,456,964 
2,814,711 
1,334,296 

210,567 

8,526,583 

(1,515,464) 

6,421,658 
(540,000) 

(1,117,952) 

4,763,706 

216,738 (3,577,162) 3,248,242 

$ 8,760,993 

Total 
governmental 

funds 

$ 20,087,489 
2,816,222 

209,540 
2,443,799 

421,537 
219,483 

1,146,098 
37,970 

520,000 
283,480 -----

28,185,618 

2,763,836 
8,345,772 
3,895,WIO 

11,893,367 
1,739,475 

210,567 

2,675,000 
2,512,276 

34,035,303 

(5,849,685) 

1,680,000 
10,889,885 
(9,648,360) 

_--,-(1:....,1_17,952) 

1,803,573 

(4,046112) 

22.993,334 

$ 18,947,222 



CITY OF DODGE CITY, KANSAS 

RECONCIL.IATION OF THE STATEMENT 01: REVENUE, EXPENDITURE:S 
AND CHANGE:S IN FUND BA1_ANCES OF THE: GOVERNME:NTAL. I=UNDS 

TO THE STATE:ME:NT OF ACTIVITIES 

Year ended December 31,2011 

Net cl1ange in fund balances, total governrnental funds 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in tile statement of activities are 
different because of tile following: 

Capital assets: 
Governrnental funds report capital outlays as expenditures, However, in tile 

staternent of activities, tile cost of tilOse assets is allocated over tl1eir estirnated 
useful lives as depreciation expense Tilis is the amount by wl1ich depreciation expense 
exceeded capital outlays in the current period. 

Long-terrn liabilities: 
Long-term liabilities are reported in tile statement of net assets. This is the amount 

by wl1icl1 repayments exceeded proceeds. 
Bond issue costs are included in expenditures in the fund financial statements. 
Amortization of deferred bond issue costs is an expense in tile statement of activities. 
Accrued interest is an expense in the statement of activities. 
Capital lease payments a,·e recorded as expenditures in lile fund financial statements. 

Other: 
Principal received on economic development revolving loans provides current financial 

resources to governmental funds, and loans made are included in expenditures. 
This is the amount by whicl1 principal repayments exceeded loans made. 

Only tile current portion of corn pen sated absences is sl10wn as an expenditure in the 
fund financial statements. 

Internal senvice funds are used by management to charge tile cost of certain activities, 
such vehicle maintenance, to individual funds. Tile net revenue (expense) of tile 
internal service fund is reported with governmental activities. 

Rounding. 

Cilange in net assets of governrnental activities 
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$ (4,046,112) 

(1,161,047) 

1,025,000 
20,741 

(87,210) 
14,595 
16,324 

(35,875) 

3,827 

(10,440) 
2 

$ (4,260,195) 



CITY OF DODGE CITY, KANSAS 

ASSETS 
Current assets'. 

Casll and cash equivalents 
Receivables, net 
Inventories 

Total current assets 

Noncurrent assets: 
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 
Capital assets: 

Land 
Buildings and improvements 
Furniture and equipment 
Utility systems 
Water'rigllts 
Construction in progress 

BAL.ANCE. SHE::E::T 
PROPRIE::TARY FUNDS 

December 31, 2011 

Less accumulated deprec'ration and amortization 
Deferred bond issue costs 

Total noncurrent assets 

$ 

Business-type activities 
Enterprise funds 

Water Wastewater 

5,423,979 $ 
219,281 376,235 
430,654 

6,073,914 376,235 

1,199,536 1,096,192 

351,435 1,157,257 
5,017,848 11,079,357 
2,007,107 1,940,019 

23,701,516 22,353,447 
3,542,614 

21,929,357 
(10,174,470) (15,116,424) 

11 148 219,022 

25,258,734 44,658,227 

Total assets $ 31,832,648 $ 45,034,462 

U6B I illiI~§ 
Current liabilities: 

Accounts payable 
Payroll liabilities 
Accrued interest payable 
Revenue bonds payable 
Loan payable 
Notes payable 

Total current liabilities 

Noncurrent liabilities: 
Revenue bonds payable 
Loan payable 
Bond premium 
Temporary note premium 
Compensated absences payable 

Total nonCUflent liabiiities 

Total liabilities 

$ 

21 

.. 

149,830 $ 632,815 
11,825 3,586 
98,874 225,808 

300,000 700,000 
178,018 1,360,242 

5,015,000 

5,753,547 2,922,451 

4,233,000 9,877,000 
2,399,729 19,772,776 

9,412 21,964 
3,273 

26,970 22,659 

6.672,384 29,694399 
'--~--""'-'~'-

12,425,931 32.616,850 



Solid waste 

$ 577,145 
96,564 

673,709 

18,200 
64,804 

2,511,244 

(2,096,751 ) 

--.-" .. ---~ 

__ . 497,4~"-

$ 

$ 

1,171,206 

31,621 
10,078 

41,699 
---~--.--

._-,--7 5~, 567 

75,567 

117.266 

Business-type activities 
Enterprise funds 

$ 

Drainage 
utility 

ci05,459 
11,326 

516,785 

4,865 
1,073,277 

(380,837) 

----" .. ~-.-

$ 

$ 

697,305 

1,214,090 

45,079 
626 

45,705 

997 

997 

46.702 

Total 

$ 6,506,583 
703,406 
430,654 

7,640,643 

2,295,728 

1,526,892 
16,162,009 
6,463,235 

47,128,240 
3,542,614 

21,929,357 
(27,768,482) 
_ 332, ~2:~ 

71,611,763 

$ 79,252,406 

$ 859,345 
26,115 

324,682 
1,000,000 
1,538,260 
5,015,000 

8,763,402 

14,110,000 
22,172,505 

31,376 
3,273 

126,193 

45,206,749 

Governmental 
activities 
Internal 

service fund 

$ 12,483 

12,525 

25,008 

65,315 

Ui5,172) 

._-_ .. __ .-. 

.. __ .. _1.2..~43 .. 

$ 

$ 

35,151 

9,826 
1,333 

8,145 

19,304 



CITY OF DODGE CITY, KANSAS 

BALANCE SHEET 
f)I'<.OPRIETAI'<.Y FUNDS (CONTINUED) 

Decem bet' 31, 2011 

l3usiness·type activities 
___ . Ent~.':erise::..f,-=uc:.:n:::.ds:::..... __ _ 

Water Wastewater 

NET ASSETS 

Invested in capital assets, 
net of related debt $ 12,320,304 $ 11,632,995 

Restricted (expendable): 
Debt service 444,505 1,042,057 

Unrestricted 6,641,908 (257,440) 

Total net assets 19,406,717 12,417,612 

Total liabilities and net assets $ 31,832,648 $ 45,034,462 

Tile accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements, 
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13usiness-type activities 
__________ =E~nterprise funds 

brainage 
Solid waste utility 

$ 497,497 $ 697,305 

556,443 470,083 

1,053,940 1,167,388 

$ 1,171,206 $ 1,214,090 

Total ------

$ 25,148,101 

1,486,562 
7,410,994 

34,045,657 

$ 79,252,406 

Governmental 
activities 
Internal 

service fund 

$ 10,143 

5,704 

15,847 

$ 35,151 



CITY OF DODGE CITY, KANSAS 

STATl'::M[NT OF RE::VE'NUE::, r:::XI~E'NSE'S, AND CHANGE'S IN FUND NET ASSETS 
I~ROPF~IETARY FUNDS 

Operating revenue: 
Charges for services 

Operating expenses: 
Personal services 
Contractual services 
Repairs and maintenance 
Other supplies and expenses 
Capital outlay 
Other expense 
Depreciation 

Total operating expense 

Operating income (loss) 

Nonoperating revenue (expense): 
Operating grants 
Interest and investment revenue 
Payment in-lieu of water rights 
Interest expense 

Year ended December 31,2011 

Total nonoperating revenue (expense) 

Income (loss) before other revenue, expenses and transfers 

Other revenue, expenses and transfers: 
Capital grants and donations 
Contributed capital, net 
Gain (loss) on disposal of assets 
Transfers out 

Change in net assets 

Total net assets, beginning of year 
Prior period adjustments 

Total net assets. end of yeal' 

Business-type activities 
lenterprise funds 

Water Wastewater 

~4,55V89 $ 4,074,508 

853,785 464,250 
822,773 3,032,863 
163,298 73,696 
404,452 45,483 

22,319 63,340 
49,808 30,043 

661,739 578,345 --_._--

2,978,174 4,288,020 ----_._--

__ ~~!5,6_~5_ (213,512) 

248,295 579,355 
30,628 61,360 

3,600,000 
_ ... __ 1..4.50 ,c;22) (681,085) 

__ 3,428,40~ (40,370) 

5,004,016 (253,882) 

333,941 177,025 

(650,000) (388,880) 

4,687,957 (465,737) 

14,718,160 12,553,592 
329,757 

S 19,406,717 S 12,417,612 

Tile accompanying notes are an integral part of tile basic financial statements. 
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lousiness-type activities Governmental 
Enterprise funds activities 

Drainage Internal 
Solid waste utility Total service fund 

_$_1,762,354 $ 192,857 $ 10,583,508 $ 321,925 

836,628 52,993 2,207,656 114,018 
450,915 196,506 4,503,057 4,967 

58,777 295,771 27,963 
180,919 550 631,404 180,847 

2,404 1,199 89,262 
6,601 499 86,951 

180,967 37,413 1,458,464 ___ 2,570_ 

. __ 1)1l,2~ 289,160 9,272,565 332,365 -_ .. _-----

45,143 ____ (96~'l_0_31 __ 1,310,9~ (~CJ,_~40) ---... ~-.. --

827,650 
661 681 93,330 

3,600,000 
(1,131,607) 

--"_.- --_._--_ .. __ . ----_._-

661 681 3,389,373 ----- ---.---
45,804 (95,622) 4,700,316 (10,440) 

13,794 13,794 
510,966 

(3,525) (3,525) 
(16"1,645) (35,000)_ (1,241,525) 

(111,572) (130,622) 3,980,026 (10,440) 

1,165,512 1,298,010 29,735,874 26,287 
329,75"1 -------

S 1,053,940 S 1,1(;/,388 S 34,045,65"1 $ 15,847 
::===.~....::==-......:::::: :.:.-=-~-==---::::= :::...-::==~:::..-=::-....:::=..= .. 



CITY OF DODGE CITY, KANSAS 

STATEMENT OF CASH I"I_OWS 
F'pm)r;;IETAI~Y I=UNDS 

Year ended December 31,2011 

Business-type activities 
Enterprise funds 

Cash flows from operating activities: 
Receipts from customers 
Payments for goods and services 
Payments to employees 

Net cash provided (used) by 
operating activities 

Cash flows from noncapital financing 
activities: 

Operating grants 
I'ayment in-lieu of water rights 
Operating subsidies to other funds 

Net cash provided (used) by noncapital 
financing activities 

Cash flows from capital and related 
financing activities: 

Capital grants and contributions 
Proceeds of capital debt 
Purchases of capital assets 
Principal paid on capital debt 
Interest paid on capital debt 

Net cash provided (used) by capital and 
related financing activities 

Cash flows from investing activities: 
Interest and dividends 

Net increase (decrease) in casll 
and cash equivalents 

Balances, beginning of year 

Balances, end of year 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 

Total balance, end of yem 
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$ 

Water 

4,365,459 
(1,510,515) 

(871,445) 

1,983,499 

248,295 
3,GOO,000 

J6_!3Cl,QOO) 

3,198,295 -------

(149,713) 
(461,686) 
(454,084) 

(1,065,483) 

26,565 

4,142,876 

2,480,639 

$ 6,623,515 

S 5,423,919 
1,199,536 ----"-------

S 6,623,515 
:::;::::-=--== 

Wastewater 

$ 3,930,210 
(5,866,430) 

(463,889) 

(2,400,109) 

579,355 

(388,880) 

190,475 

12,205,225 
(8,727,860) 

(679,000) 
(546,013L 

2,252,352 

59,517 
..... _-

102,235 

993,957 

$ 1,096,192 

S 
1,096,192 

S 1,096192 



Business-type activities 
Enterprise funds 

Drainage 
Solid waste utility 

$ 1,759,495 $ 192,661 
(720,384) (168,321) 
(831,319) (53,000) 

207,792 (28,660) 

178,815 

(35,0002. 

11,170 
.. ~-,~--.---

13}94 

13,794 

661 
----' 

681 

233,417 (62,979) 

343,728 568,438 

$ 577,145 
~~~ =$~' =505,459 

s 571,145 s 505.459 

$ 577,145 $ 505,4~)9 
0-='--:=== 

Total 

$ 10,247,825 
(8,265,650) 
(2,219,653) 

(237,478) 

1,006,465 
3,600,000 

_._~~ 41 ,52:5). 

3,364,940 
-.-~,---

13,794 
12,205,225 
(8,877,5/3) 
(1,140,686) 
(1,000,097). 

1,200,663 

~~_8,7,424 

4,415,549 

4,386,762 

$ 8,802,311 

S 6,506,583 
2,295,728 

$ 8,802,311 
==-.....=.:::.-;;:;:;-..:;: 

Governrnental 
activities 
Internal 

service fund 

$ 321,926 
(209,544) 
(112,779) 

(397) 

(397) 

12,880 

$ 12,483 

12,483 

$ 12,483 
=.::;-~::::==-;: 



CITY OF DODGE CITY, KANSAS 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED) 
PFWPRIETAF\Y FUNDS 

Year ended December 31, 2011 

Business-type activities 

r,econciliation of operating income to 
net cash provided by operating activities: 

Operating income 
Adjustments to reconcile operating 

income to net cash provided 
by operating activities: 

Depreciation expense 
Amortization expense 
Change in assets and liabilities: 

Receivables, net 
Inventories 
Accounts and other payables 

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 

E nterp ri se-.:.f::.:u 'c.:ld:.:s ___ _ 

Water 

$ 1,575,615 

661,739 

(32,558) 
(72,244) 

___ J~~,053)_ 

S 1,983,499 

Wastewater 

$ (213,512) 

578,345 
18,414 

(144,298) 

(2,639,058) 

$ (2,400,109) 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of tile financial statements. 
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Solid waste 

$ 45,143 

180,967 

(2,859) 

(15,459) 

l3usiness-type activities 
Enterprise funds 

s 

Drainage 
utility 

(96,303) 

37,413 

( 196) 

30,426 

Total 

$ 1,310,943 

1,458,464 
18,414 

(179,911) 
(72,244) 

(2,773,144) _-=c'--

S (237,478) 
- . 

Governmental 
activities 
Internal 

service fund 

$ (10,440) 

4,570 

4,125 
1,347 ------

$===,(",,3;;98 ) 



Cash and cash equivalents 
Investments 
Accounts receivable, net 
Inventory 
Notes receivable 
Prepaid expense 
Capital assets, net 

Total assets 

Accounts payable 
Accrued interest payable 
Compensated absences payable 
Deposits and deferred revenue 
Other accrued liabilities 
Long-term liabilities: 

Due in more than one yem 

Total liabilities 

NET ASSETS 

Invested in capital assets, 
net of related debt 

Restricted: 
Housing Authority 
Temporarily restricted 

Unrestricted 

Total net assets 

Total liabilities and net assets 

CITY OF DODGE CITY, KANSAS 

STATE'ME'NT OF NI:T ASSI:=TS 
MAJOF\ COMF'ONE'NT UNITS 

December 31,2011 

Dodge City 
Public Library 

$ 334,018 

1,047,583 -.-----... --~ 

$ 1,381,601 

$ 23,592 

66,124 

89,716 

1,047,583 

244,302 

1,291,885 

S 1,381,601 

Dodge City­
Ford County 
Development 
Corporation 

$ 305,132 

119,268 

__ ~60,~~~ 

$ 

S 

1,484,664 

556,611 
21,652 

22,365 

762,000 

1,362,628 

298,264 

133,623 
(309,851 ) 

122,036 

1,484,664 

Dodge City 
Housing 
Authority 

$ 673,889 
567,362 

52,280 
21,497 
59,202 
16,441 

__I,Il::2c 646 

$ 9,111,317 

72,384 

23,004 
58,236 

6,201 

159,825 

7,720,646 

215,453 

__ 1,01 !5.,393 _ 

8,951,492 - ... ''".~.---.. ----.. 

S 9,111,317 

Tile accompanying notes are an inteqral part of tile basic financial statements. 
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Total 

$ 1,313,039 
567,362 

52,280 
21,497 

178,470 
16,441 

9,828,<1:93_ 

$11,977,582 

$ 95,976 
556,611 
110,780 
58,236 
28,566 

?62,000 
"---"----

1,612,169 

9,066,493 

215,453 
133,623 
949,844 

10,365,413 

S11,977,5il2 



CITY OF DODGE CITY, KANSAS 

Dodge City Public Library 
Culture and recreation 
Depreciation 

Total Dodge City Public Library 

Dodge City-Ford County 
Development Corporation 

Community services 
Depreciation 

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIE,S 
MAJOR COMPONENT UNITS 

Year ended December 31,2011 

Charges for 
Expenses services 

$ 1,182,973 $ 26,119 
83,503 

1,266,476 26,119 

Program revenues 
Operating 
grants and 

contributions 

$ 51,150 

51,150 

412,845 75,408 283,089 

3,08~_ 

Total Dodge City-Ford County 
Development Corporation 415,933 . 75,408 283,089 

Dodge City Housing Authority 
Operating expenses 
Depreciation 

Total Dodge City Housing 
Authority 

Total component units 

1,634,542 797,239 723,185 
419,133 

2,053,675 ___ 797,23~ 723,185 

$ 3,736,084 $ 

General revenues: 
Gain on assets 
Investment earnings 

898,766 

Transfer from primary government 
Miscellaneous 

Total general revenues 

Change in net assets 
Net assets - beginning 

Net assets - ending 

$ 1,057,424 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements. 
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Capital 
grants and 

contributions 

$ 3,165 

3,165 

8,012 

8,012 

573,550 

573,550 

$ 584,727 



Dodge City 
F'ublic Library 

Changes in net assets 
Dodge City­
Ford County 
Development 
Corporation 

Dodge City 
Housing 
Authority 

$ (1,102,539) $ $ 
(83,503) 

(1,186,042) 

(1,186,042) 

1,579 
1,117,952 

9,559 

1,129,090 

(56,952) 
1,348,837 

$ 1,291,885 $ 

(46,336) 
(3,088) 

(49,424 ) 

(49,424) 

(8,571 ) 
3,546 

(5,025) 

(54,449) 
176,485 

122,036 $ 

459,432 
(419,133) 

40,299 

40,299 

9,333 

13,820 

23,153 

63,452 
8,888,040 

8,951,492 

Totals 

$ (1,102,539) 
(83,503) 

$ 

(1,186,042) 

(46,336) 
(3,088) 

(49,424) 

459,432 
(419,133) 

40,299 

(1,195,167) 

(8,571) 
14,458 

1,117,952 
23,379 

1,147,218 

(47,949) 
10,413,362 

10,365,413 



CITY OF DODGE CITY, KANSAS 

BUDGETARY COMPARISON STATEMENT 
GENERAI_ FUND 

Year ended December 31, 2011 

Variance with 
final budget 

Budgeted amounts Actual amounts positive 
__ 9riginal Final (budgetary basis) (negative) 

Budgetary fund balance, 
beginning of year $ 1,500,730 $ 1,500,730 $ (93,269) $ (1,593,999) 

Resources (inflows): 
Taxes 9,320,610 9,320,610 9,863,893 543,283 
Intergovernmental 162,800 162,800 181,150 18,350 
Licenses, fees and permits 339,700 339,700 209,540 (130,160) 
Charges for services 919,500 919,500 1,031,096 111,596 
Rentals 73,000 73,000 212,493 139,493 
Fines and forfeitures 1,106,500 1,106,500 1,138,373 31,873 
Investment earnings 150,000 150,000 6,407 (143,593) 
Miscellaneous 11,000 11,000 39,804 28,804 
Transfers from other funds 1,651,525 1,651,525 1,331,525 (320,000) 

Amounts available 
for appropriation 15,235,365 15,235,365 13,921,012 (1,314,353) -_._. __ ._---------

Charges to appropriations 
(outflows): 

General government 2,898,761 2,898,761 1,391,612 1,507,149 
Public safety 7,793,478 7,793,478 7,987,210 (193,732) 
F'ublic works 1,415,193 1,415,193 1,450,265 (35,072) 
Culture and recreation 2,340,921 2,340,921 2,549,459 (208,538) 
Community services 637,012 637,012 423,679 213,333 
Transfers to other funds 150,000 150,000 100,000 50,000 

Total charges to 
appropriations 15,235,365 15,235,365 13,902,225 1,333,140 

Budgetary fund balance, 
end of year $ $ 18,787 $ 18,787 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements. 
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CITY OF DODGE CITY, KANSAS 

BUDGETARY COMPARISON STATEMENT 
SALES TAX FUND 

Year ended December 31,2011 

Variance with 
final budget 

Budgeted amounts Actual amounts positive 
Original Final (budgetary basis) (negative) 

Budgetary fund balance, 
beginning of year $ 4,464,7 40 $ 8,576,921 $ 8,088,532 $ (488,389) 

Resources (inflows): 
Taxes 5,000,000 5,000,000 5,426,004 426,004 
Charges for services 56,600 56,600 73,358 16,758 
Rentals 6,990 6,990 
Investment earnings 100,000 100,000 7,304 (92,696) 
Miscellaneous 8,885 8,885 
Transfers from other funds 50,000 50,000 50,000 

Amounts available 
for appropriation 9,671,340 13,783,521 13,661,073 (122,448) 

Charges to appropriations 
(outflows) : 

Cultme and recreation 1,225,104 4,032,940 2,652,476 1,380,464 
Transfers to other funds 3,318,670 6,578,600 7,285,601 (707,001) 

Total charges to 
appropriations 4,543,774 10,611,540 9,938,077 673,~.?2-

BudgetalY fund balance, 
end of year $ 5,127,566 $ 3,171,981 $ 3,722,996 $ 551,015 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements. 
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CITY OF DODGE CITY, KANSAS 

BUDGETARY COMPARISON STATEMENT 
BUDGET TO GAAF) RECONCILIATION 

Year ended December 31, 2011 

Sources/inflows of resources: 
Actual amounts available for appropriation from the budgetary 

comparison statement 
Differences, budget to GAAP: 

The fund balance at the beginning of the year is a budgetary resource, 
but is not a current-year revenue for financial reporting purposes. 

Current year sales tax and other receivable amounts are not a budgetary 
resource, but they are revenues for financial reporting purposes. 

Prior year sales tax and other receivable amounts are a budgetary 
resource, but they are not revenues for financial reporting purposes. 

Transfers from other funds are inflows of budgetary resources, but 
are not revenues for financial reporting purposes. 

Total revenue as reported on the statement of revenue, expenditures, 
and changes in fund balances, governmental funds 

Uses/outflows of resources: 
Actual amounts of charges to appropriations from the budgetary 

comparison statement 
Differences, budget to GAAP: 

Current year encumbrances are included as a budgetary outflow. 
Prior year encumbrances are not included as a budgetary outflow. 
Transfers to other funds are outflows of budgetary resources, but 

are not expenditures for financial reporting purposes. 
Certain transfers were reclassified to expenditures for budgetary purposes. 
Inventory purchases are included as a budgetary outflow, but are reported 

as expense when the inventory is sold for financial reporting purposes. 
Rounding 

Total expenditures as reported on the statement of revenue, 
expenditures, and changes in fund balances, governmental funds 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

General 
fund 

13,921,012 

93,269 

841,676 

(741,016) 

(1,331,525) 

12,783,416 

13,902,225 

(12,219) 

(100,000) 
(63,500) 

(33,734) 

13,692,772 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements. 
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Sales tax 
fund 

$ 13,661,073 

(8,088,532) 

387,754 

(336,490) 

(50,000) 

$ 5,573,805 

$ 9,938,077 

(24,763) 
403,013 

(7,285,601 ) 

2 

$ 3,030,728 



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 



A SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

1. fin a n..Q@lJEl2o rti l}gQ.l}illY~co n tin ui'cJl 

Dodge City Housing Authority The members of the governing board of the 
Housing Authority are appointed by the City Commission. Although the City 
does not have the authority to approve or modify the I-lousing Authority's 
operational and capital budgets, and the Housing Authority has the authority 
to issue bonded debt, the City is fiscally responsible for the Housing Authority 
since it was created as an agent of the City. The Housing Authority uses the 
accrual basis of accounting and consists of one enterprise fund. The Housing 
Authority has a fiscal year ending September 30, and the financial data 
included in the discrete presentation are as of and for the year ended 
September 30, 2011. 

Complete financial statements of each of the individual major component units 
can be obtained directly from their administrative offices. 

Administrative Offices: 

Dodge City Public Library 
1001 Second Avenue 
Dodge City, Kansas 67801 

Dodge City - Ford County Development Corporation 
311 W. Spruce 
Dodge City, Kansas 67801 

Dodge City Housing Authority 
407 E. Bend 
Dodge City, Kansas 67801 

2. Basic financial statement~overnment-wide statements 

The City's basic financial statements include both government-wide (repoliing 
the City as a whole) and fund financial statements (reporting the City's major 
funds). Both the government·wide and fund financial statements categorize 
primary activities as either governmental or business-type. The City's general 
government, public safety, public works, culture and recreation and community 
services functions are classified as governmental activities. The water, 
wastewater, solid waste and drainage utility services are classified as business­
type activities. 

In the government-wide Statement of Net Assets, both the governmental and 
business-type activities columns (a) are presented on a consolidated basis by 
column, and (b) are reported on a full accrual, economic resource basis which 
recognizes all long-term assets and receivables as well as long-term debt and 
obligations. The City's net assets are reported in three parts: invested in capital 
assets, net of related debt; restricted net assets; and unrestricted net assets. 
Restricted net assets include those restricted for debt service, construction and 
sales tax projects The City first utilizes restricted resources to finance 
qualifying activities. 
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A. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUE:IJ) 

The government-wide Statement of Activities reports both the gross and net 
cost of each of the City's governmental functions and business-type activities. 
Tile functions are also supported by general government revenues (property 
taxes and certain intergovernmental revenues). The Statement of Activities 
reduces gross expenses (including depreciation) by related program revenues, 
operating and capital grants. Program revenues must be directly associated 
with the governmental function or business-type activity. Governmental charges 
for services include licenses, fees and permits, rentals, fines and forfeitures, and 
charges for recreational activities. Business-type charges (operating revenue) 
include charges for utility services. Operating grants include operating-specific 
and discretionary (either operating or capital) grants while the capital grants 
column reflects capital-specific grants. All internal activity has been eliminated. 

The net costs (by governmental function or business-type activity) are normally 
covered by general government revenues such as property taxes, 
intergovernmental revenues, and interest income. 

The City does not allocate indirect costs. The direct costs of General Fund 
services provided such as finance, personnel, purchasing, legal, technology 
management, etc. are included in the governmental functions categories. 

This government-wide focus is on the sustainability of the City as an entity and 
the change in the City's net assets resulting from the current year's activities. 

3. Ba_sic_ financial statements - fund financial statements 

The financial transactions of the City are reported in individual funds in the fund 
financial statements. Each fund is accounted for by providing a separate set of 
self-balancing accounts that comprises its assets, liabilities, reserves, fund 
equity, revenues and expenditures/expenses. The various funds are reported 
by generic classification within the financial statements. 

The following funds are used by the City: 

a. Governmental Funds: 

The focus of the governmental funds' measurement in the fund statements 
is upon determination of financial position and changes in financial position 
(sources, uses, and balances of current financial resources) rather than 
upon net income. The following is a description of the governmental funds 
of the City. 

General fund is the general operating fund of the City. It is used to 
account for all financial resources except those required to be accounted 
for in another fund. 

Special revenue funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific 
revenue sources that are legally restricted to expenditures for specified 
purposes. 

Debt ,JOQrvice funds are established for the purpose of accumulating 
resources for the payment of interest and principal on long-term debt other 
than that payable from enterprise funds. 

Capital prol-ects funds are used to account for major capital expenditures 
not financed by enterprise funds. 
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A SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

3. Basic financial statements - fund finSl.!lcial statemi7nts (continued) 

b. E!:QQ[~tary Funds 

The focus of proprietary fund measurement is upon determination of 
operating income, changes in net assets, financial position, and cash flows. 
The generally accepted accounting principles applicable are those similar to 
businesses in the private sector. The following is a description of the 
proprietary funds of the City. 

Enterprise funds are required to be used to account for operations for 
which a fee is charged to external users for goods or services and the 
activity (a) is financed with debt that is solely secured by a pledge of the 
net revenues, (b) has third party requirements that the cost of providing 
services, including capital costs, be recovered with fees and charges or (c) 
establishes fees and charges based on a pricing policy designed to 
recover similar costs. Operating revenues include charges for services; 
non-operating revenues include investment income, operating grants and 
contributions. 

Internal service funds are used to account for the financing of goods or 
services provided by an activity to other departments or funds of the City 
on a cost-reimbursement basis. 

c. fJguciary Funds: 

Fiduciary funds are used to report assets held in a trustee or agency 
capacity for others and therefore are not available to support City 
programs. The reporting focus is on net assets and changes in net 
assets. 

The emphasis in fund financial statements is on the major funds in either the 
governmental or business-type activities categodes. Nonmajor funds by category 
are summarized into a single column. GASB Statement No. 34 sets forth the 
minimum cr-iteria (percentage of the assets, liabilities, revenues or 
expenditures/expenses of either fund category 01" the governmental and enterprise 
combined) for the determination of major funds. The City may electively add 
funds as major funds. The nonmajor funds are combined in one column in the 
fund financial statements. Major governmental funds are the General, Sales Tax, 
GO Bond and Interest, Special Events Center Revenue Bonds and Special Events 
Center Project Fund. The major business-type funds are the Water and 
Wastewater Funds. The City has elected to include the Solid Waste and Drainage 
Utility Funds as major funds. 

The City's internal service fund is presented in the proprietary funds financial 
statements. Because the principal users of the internal services are the City's 
governmental activities, the financial information of the internal service fund is 
consolidated into the governmental column when presented in the government­
wide financial statements. The administrative overhead component of these 
programs is not eliminated, but is included in direct expenses. To the extent 
possible, the cost of these services is reported in the appropriate governmental 
functional activity (general government, public safety, public works, etc.). Internal 
services are provided through the Vehicle Maintenance Fund. 
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A. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

4. M.,easulenJ~nt focusand.Qasi~J2i.§ccouQJiDg 

Measurement focus is a term used to describe "which" transactions are recorded 
within the various financial statements. Basis of accounting refers to "when" 
transactions are recorded regardless of the measurement focus applied. 

Measurement Focus 

On the government-wide Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities, 
both governmental and business-type activities are presented using the economic 
resources measurement focus as defined in item b. below. 

In the fund financial statements, the "current financial resources" measurement 
focus or the "economic resources" measurement focus is used as appropriate: 

a. All governmental funds utilize a "current financial resources" measurement 
focus. Only current financial assets and liabilities are generally included on 
their balance sheets. Their operating statements present sources and uses 
of available spendable financial resources during a given period. These 
funds use fund balance as their measure of available spendable financial 
resources at the end of the period. 

b. The proprietary funds utilize an "economic resources" measurement focus. 
The accounting objectives of this measurement focus are the determination 
of operating income, changes in net assets (or cost recovery), financial 
position, and cash flows. All assets and liabilities (whether current or 
noncurrent) associated with their activities are reported. Proprietary fund 
equity is classified as net assets. 

Basis of Accounting 

I n the government-wide Statement of Net Assets and Statement of Activities, both 
governmental and business-type activities are presented using the accrual basis 
of accounting. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized 
when earned and expenses are recorded when the liability is incurred or economic 
asset used. Revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets, and liabilities resulting 
from exchange and exchange-like transactions are recognized when the 
exchange takes place. 

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds are presented on the 
modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this modified accrual basis of 
accounting, revenues are recognized when "measurable and available." 
Measurable means knowing or being able to reasonably estimate the amount. 
Available means collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to 
pay current liabilities. The City considers revenues to be available if they are 
expected to be collected within 60 days of the end of the year. 

Expenditures (including capital outlay) are recorded when the related fund liability 
is incurred, except for general obligation bond principal and interest which are 
reported when due. 

All proprietary funds utilize the accrual basis of accounting. Under the accrual 
basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are 
recorded when the liability is incurred or economic asset used. 
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A. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

5. En~ur)lbrances 

Encumbrances represent commitments related to unperformed contracts for 
goods or services. Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, 
contracts and other commitments for the expenditure of resources are recorded to 
reserve that portion of the applicable appropriation, is used in the governmental 
funds. For budgetary purposes, appropriations lapse at fiscal year-end, except for 
the portion related to encumbered amounts. Encumbrances outstanding at year­
end are reported as reservations of fund balances and do not constitute 
expenditures or liabilities because the commitment will be honored during the 
subsequent year. 

6. Budgetary control 

Kansas statutes require that an annual operating budget be legally adopted for the 
general fund, special revenue funds (unless specifically exempted by statute), 
debt service funds and enterprise funds. The statutes provide for the following 
sequence and timetable in the adoption of the legal annual operating budget: 

a. Preparation of the budget for the succeeding calendar year on or before 
August 1st 

b. Publication in local newspaper on or before August 51h of the proposed 
budget and notice of public hearing on the budget. 

c. Public hearing on or before August 151h
, but at least ten days after 

publication of notice of hearing. 

d. Adoption of the final budget on or before /\ugust 251h 

The statutes allow fOI- the governing body to increase the originally adopted 
budget for previously unbudgeted increases in revenue other than ad valorem 
property taxes. To do this, a notice of public hearing to amend the budget must 
be published in the local newspaper. At least ten days after pUblication the 
hearing may be held and the governing body may amend the budget at that time. 
Budgets were amended for the following funds: 

Fund 

Sales Tax - Special Projects 
Convention & Visitors 
Special Alcohol & Drug 
Drainage Utility 
Vehicle Maintenance 

Original 
__ )Judget 

$ 4,543,774 
782,394 

80,000 
363,524 
267,475 

Amended 
budget 

$ 10,611,540 
882,394 
108,000 
680,000 
312,500 

The statutes permit transferring budgeted amounts between line items within an 
individual fund. However, such statutes prohibit expenditures in excess of the 
total amount of the adopted budget of expenditures of individual funds Budget 
comparison statements are presented for the General Fund and major special 
revenue funds showing actual reCeipts and expenditures compared to legally 
budgeted receipts and expenditures. 
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A. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

6. l3udgetaI'{J:~nJI()J (continued) 

All legal annual operating budgets are prepared using the statutory basis of 
accounting, in which revenues are recognized when cash is received and 
expenditures include disbursements, accounts payable, and encumbrances, with 
disbursements being adjusted for prior year's accounts payable and 
encumbrances. Encumbrances are commitments by the municipality for future 
payments and are supported by a document evidencing the commitment, such as 
a purchase order or contract Any unused budgeted expenditure authority lapses 
at year-end. 

A legal operating budget is not required for state and federal grant funds, donation 
funds, reserve funds, capital projects funds, agency funds and the following 
special revenue funds: 

Special Revenue: 
Building 
Sales Tax Organizations 
Special Law Enforcement Trust 
Economic Development Revolving 
Hoover Trust 
Roof Insurance Repairs 
Medical Insurance Reserve 
Capital Equipment Reserve 
Underage Alcohol Abuse 
DARE 
Special Events Center 
SMPC Trust 
Municipal Band 

Spending in funds which are not subject to the legal annual operating budget 
requirement is controlled by federal regulations, other statutes, or by the use of 
internal spending limits established by the governing body. 

7. Pl'nsioJLI2@n 

Substantially all full-time employees are members of the State of Kansas Public 
Employees' Retirement System (KPERS) or the Kansas Police and Firemen's 
Retirement System (KP&F), both of which are cost-sharing multiple-employer 
state-wide pension plans. The City's policy is to fund all pension costs accrued; 
such costs to be funded are determined annually by the system's actuaJY. 

8. Section 125 plan 

The City offers a section 125 flexible benefit plan to employees electing to 
participate. It is used for health insurance premiums, other medical costs and 
child care costs. The plan is administered by the health insurance provider. 

9. Health savings account 

The City offers eligible employees a health savings account administered by 
Fidelity State Bank. It is optional for employees to participate in the City's high 
deductible health plan. The City's match for the HSA is $500 for family and $250 
for single. 
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A. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

1 0 . lL~EOQLEO?1itlla te s 

The preparation of financial statements ill conformity with generally accepted 
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions 
that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results 
could differ from those estimates. 

11. Financial statement amounts 

a. Pooled cash 

To facilitate better management of the City's cash resources, excess cash is 
combined in pooled operating accounts. Each fund's portion of total cash is 
based on its equity in the pooled cash amount. Cash in excess of current 
operating needs is invested on a pooled investment basis and earnings 
thereon are distributed to the appropriate funds based on the average 
monthly balance of cash and temporary investments included in the 
combined pool of cash and temporary investments. 

b. I nvestments and restricted cash 

Investments consist of time deposits, certificates of deposit, the State 
Municipal Investment Pool and repurchase agreements. The investment 
pool is administered by a board consisting of the State Treasurer and four 
additional members appointed by the Governor of the State of Kansas. 
Investments are reported at fair value (which is the same as cost) in the 
statement of net assets. Unrealized gains and losses are included in the 
change in net assets. 

Enterprise funds and sales tax revenue bond project funds, based on certain 
bond covenants, are required to establish and maintain a prescribed amount 
of resources (consisting of cash and temporary investments) that can be 
used only to service outstanding debt. These amounts are restricted cash. 
Cash in capital projects funds and the Sales Tax Fund is restricted for the 
corresponding project. 

c. Cash and cash equivalents 

The City has defined cash and cash equivalents to include cash on hand, 
demand deposits, and all highly liquid investments, including restricted 
assets, with a maturity of three months or less when purchased. 

d. Receivables 

In the government-wide statements, receivables consist of all revenues 
earned at year-end and not yet received. Major receivable balances for the 
governmental activities include trade accounts receivable for miscellaneous 
charges, and receivables from other- governments for grant funding. 
Business-type activities report utility service charges as accounts receivable. 
An allowance for doubtful receivables is not considered necessary because 
receivables are written off when they become uncollectible. 
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10 FinanciaLst?temeIJL§l}loun~jy2JlJinu~ 

d. Receivables (continuecJj 

The determination of assessed valuation and the collections of property 
taxes for all political subdivisions in the State of Kansas is the responsibility 
of the various counties. The County Appraiser's Office annually determines 
assessed valuation and the County Clerk allocates the annual assessment 
to the taxing units. Taxes are levied by November 1, and a lien for all taxes 
attaches on that same date until the taxes are paid. One-11alf of the property 
taxes is due December 20 and distributed by January 20 and the second 
half is due May 10 and distributed by June 5. Consequently, current year 
property taxes receivable are not available as a resource that can be used 
to finance the current year operations of the City. Accruals of uncollected 
current year property taxes have been deferred and are not reflected in 
revenue. 

It is not practicable to apportion delinquent taxes held by the County 
Treasurer at the end of the year and, further, the amounts thereof are not 
material in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole. 

In applying GASB Statement No. 33 to grant revenues, the provider 
recognizes liabilities and expenses and the recipient recognizes receivables 
and revenue when the applicable eligibility requirements, including time 
requirements, are met. Resources transmitted before the eligibility 
requirements are met are reported as advances by the provider and 
deferred revenue by the recipient. Subsidies and grants to proprietary 
funds, which finance either capital or current operations, are reported as 
nonoperating revenue. 

e. In",enlQrie§. 

Inventories in the general fund consist of merchandise held for resale and 
am carried at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out) or market. 

Inventories in the proprietary funds consist of expendable supplies held for 
the City's use and are carried at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out) or 
market. 

f. Capital assets 

Capital assets purchased or acquired with an original cost of $1,000 or more 
are reported at historical cost or estimated historical cost. Contributed 
assets are reported at fair value as of the date received. Additions, 
improvements and other capital outlays that significantly extend the useful 
life of an asset are capitalized. Other costs incurred for repairs and 
maintenance are expensed as incurred. Depreciation/amortization on all 
assets is provided on the straight-line basis over the following estimated 
useful lives: 

Buildings and improvements 
Furniture and equipment 
Utility systems 
General infrastructure 
Water rig hts 
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A SUMMAIW OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

11. Deferred bond issue costs 

Deferred bond issue costs are being amortized on the straight-line basis over the 
respective lives of the bonds. 

12. ~ompensated absences 

The City's policies regarding vacation permit an employee to accumulate a 
maximum of 20 days vacation. These amounts are paid to the employee upon 
retirement or if the employee left on good standing. A maximum accumulation of 
120 days of sick leave is allowed. Upon retirement or termination, 25% of the 
accumulated sick leave is paid to employees in good standing and with twelve 
continuous months of service. The City has a sick leave bank whereby 
employees can transfer excess sick leave to a bank to be used by employees who 
are on extended sick leave and have exhausted their own sick leave 
accumulation. The sick leave bank is administered by a committee of City 
employees. All employees are given credit for holidays worked, which is then 
accumulated for additional time off. This holiday time must be taken within the 
same year in which earned or the time is lost 

The liabilities for accrued vacation, sick leave and holiday time have been 
recorded in the respective funds, representing the City's commitment to fund such 
costs from future operations. The liabilities are based on current salary costs and 
the vested portion of accumulated benefits. 

13. .Government-wide and proprietary fund net assets 

Government-wide and proprietary fund net assets are divided into three 
components: 

a. Invested in capital assets, net of related debt - consist of the historical cost 
of capital assets less accumulated depreciation and less any debt that 
remains outstanding that was used to finance those assets. 

b. Restricted net assets - consist of net assets that are restricted by creditors, 
by state enabling legislation, by grantors, and by other contributors. 

c. Unrestricted net assets - all other net assets are reported under this 
category. 
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A. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING I~OLlCIES (CONTINUED) 

14. goverrllTlenJal fund balances 

In the governmental fund financial statements, fund balances are classified as 
follows: 

a. Nonspendable - Amounts that cannot be spent either because they are in a 
nonspendable form or because they are legally or contractually required to 
be maintained intact. 

b. Restricted - Amounts that can be spent only for specific purposes due to 
City resolutions, state or federal laws, or externally imposed conditions by 
grantors and creditors. 

c. Committed - Amounts that can be used only for specific purposes 
determined by a formal action by City Commissioners resolution. 

d. Assigned - Amounts that are designated by the City Commissioners or 
management for a particular purpose but are not spendable until there is 
formal approval. 

e. Unassigned - All amounts not included in other spendable classifications. 

1S.§Recial assessments 

Projects financed in part by special assessments are financed throug h issuance of 
general obligation bonds of the City and are retired from the bond and interest 
fund. Special assessments paid prior to the issuance of bonds are recorded as 
revenue in the appropriate project fund. Special assessments received after the 
issuance of bonds are recorded as revenue in the bond and interest fund or the 
appropriate capital project fund. 

16. Interfund activity 

Interfund activity is reported as loans, reimbursements or transfers. Loans are 
reported as interfund receivables and payables and are subject to elimination 
upon consolidation. Reimbursements occur when one fund incurs a cost, charges 
the appropriate benefiting fund and reduces its related cost as a reimbursement. 
All other interfund transactions are treated as transfers. Transfers between 
governmental or proprietary funds are netted as part of the reconciliation to the 
government-wide financial statements. 

17. Other post employment benefits 

As provided by KSA 12-5040, the City allows retirees to participate in the group 
health insurance plan. While each retiree pays the full amount of the applicable 
premium, conceptually, the City is subsidizing the retirees because each 
participant is charged a level of premium regardless of age. However, the cost of 
this subsidy has not been quantified in these financial statements, because it is 
not considered material. 

Under the Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act (COBRA), the City 
makes health care benefits available to eligible former employees and eligible 
dependents. Certain requirements are outlined by the federal government for this 
coverage. The premium is paid in full by the insured. There is no cost to the City 
under this program. 
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B. COMPLIANCE WITH KANSAS LAW 

References made herein to the statutes are not intended as interpretations of law, but 
are offered for consideration to the Dil'ector of Accounts and F'<.eports, Kansas 
Department of Administration, and interpretation by the legal representatives of the 
City. 

The budget law provided by K.SA 79-2935 prohibits the expenditure of funds in 
excess of that allowed by budget. Budgeted and actual expenditures for the year 
ended December 31, 2011 are as follows: 

Fund Budget Actual Variance 

General $ 15,235,365 $ 13,902,226 $ 1,333,139 
Special Liability 745,835 507,986 237,849 
Library 898,506 898,506 
Library Employee Benefits 219,446 219,446 
Sales Tax 10,611,540 9,938,077 637,463 
Convention and Visitors 882,394 829,661 52,733 
Special Streets and Highways 749,792 756,954 7,162 
Special Park and Recreation 80,000 170,000 (90,000) 
Special Alcohol and Drug 108,000 111,618 (3,618) 
Alcohol and Drug Safety Action 78,000 22,149 55,851 
AI14 Fun 282,609 45,943 236,666 
Development & Grow1h 950,000 450,000 500,000 
GO Bond and Interest 3,048,100 2,768,757 279,343 
Water 4,047,444 3,997,333 50,111 
Wastewater 4,941,034 5,254,397 (313,363) 
Solid Waste 2,008,768 1,767,598 241,170 
Drainage Utility 680,000 660,524 19,476 
Vehicle Maintenance 312,500 322,429 (9,929) 

The cash basis law provided by KSA 10-1113 prohibits the creation of indebtedness 
in excess of available monies in a fund. Although certain special revenue federal grant 
funds overspent their cash balances, according to K.SA 12-1664, the City is not 
prohibited from financing the federal share of a local program from current funds if 
available. Funds in the category are as follows: 

FAA Grant Ramp Expansion 
DJ-BX Grant 2010 
COPS Grant 2010 
Mobility Manager Grant 
Minibus Grant 2011-12 
CDBG Housing Grant 
Energy Manager Grant 

C. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS 

$ 16,240 
7,964 

12,019 
7,968 

17,499 
151 

27,786 

Policy The City does not have a formal policy for bank account deposits; however it 
does follow state statutes. KSA 9-1401 establishes the depositories which may be 
used by the City. The statute requires banks eligible to hold the City's funds to have a 
main or branch bank in the county in which the City is located, or in an adjoining county 
if such institution has been designated as an official depository, and the banks to 
provide an acceptable rate of return on funds. In addition, K.SA 9-1402 requires the 
City's deposits in financial institutions to be entirely covered by federal depository 
insurance, by a corporate surety bond, or by collateral held under a joint custody 
receipt issued by a bank within the State of Kansas, the Federal Reserve Bank of 
Kansas City, or the Federal Home Loan Bank of Topeka 
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C. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED) 

The investment policy of the City includes money market accounts and certificates of 
deposit which are considered deposits for financial accounting purposes. It also 
includes financial instruments such as U.S. Government obligations, repurchase 
agreements and the State Municipal Investment Pool. This policy requires the City to 
follow state statutes for investments. Statutes name the types of investments allowed 
and also require depository security coverage and that securities be titled in the name 
of the municipality. 

K.SA 12-1675 limits the City's investment of idle funds to time deposits, open 
accounts, and certificates of deposit with allowable financial institutions; U.S. 
government securities; temporary notes; no-fund warrants; repurchase agreements; 
and the Kansas Municipal Investment Pool. Additionally, K.S.A. 10-131(a)(6) 
authorizes the City to invest proceeds of bonds in obligations of the Federal National 
Mortgage Association, Federal Home Loan Banks, or the Federal Home Loan 
Mortgage Corporation. State statutes place no limit on the amount the City may invest 
in anyone issuer as long as the investments are adequately secured under K.SA 9-
1402 and 9-1405. 

Custodial credit risk - deposits. Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of a 
bank failure, the City's deposits may not be returned to it. At year-end the carrying 
amount of the City's deposits, including certificates of deposit, was $16,057,639. The 
bank balance was $16,451,278. Of the bank balance, $6,712,825 was covered by 
FDIC insurance, $9,738,453 was collateralized by pledged securities held under joint 
custody receipts issued by a third-party bank in the City's name. 

Investments. As of December 31, 2011, the City had the following investments and 
maturities. 

Repurchase Agreement MBIA 
Kansas Municipal Investment Pool 
Escrow Accounts - Dreyfus 
Money Market Funds - UMB 

$ 1,668,425 
914,103 

9,148,119 
8,251 

(See below) B/Negative/--
(See below) MAf 

N/A AAAm 
N/A AAAm 

At December 31, 2011, the City had invested $914,103 in the State's Municipal 
Investment Pool. The Municipal Investment Pool is under the oversight of the Pooled 
Money Investment Board. The board is comprised of the State Treasurer and four 
additional members appointed by the State Governor. The board reports annually to 
the Kansas legislature. State pooled monies may be invested in direct obligations of, 
or obligations that are insured as to principal and interest, by the U.S. government or 
any agency thereof, with maturities up to four years. No more than ten percent of 
those funds may be invested in mortgage-backed securities. In addition, the State pool 
may invest in repurchase agreements with Kansas banks or with primary government 
securities dealers. 

Separately issued financial statements of the Municipal Investment Pool may be 
obtained from the Pooled Money Investment Board, 900 S.W. Jackson, Suite 209, 
Topeka, Kansas 66612-1220. 

Credit quality risk. Investment quality ratings given above are per Standard & Poor's, 
and they are as of December 31,2011. 

Concentration of credit fisk. Investment types and percents at cost are as follows: 
Repurchase agl·eement MBIA 14%, Kansas Municipal Investrnent Pool 8% and 
Dreyfus escrow accounts 78%. 
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C DEIJOS[TS AND [NVESTMENTS (CONT[NUED) 

Interest Rate Risk. The City's investment policy does not limit investment maturities as a 
means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest 
rates. The repurchase agreement was made with MB[A Insurance Corporation on 
December 9, 2003, with Wells Fargo Bank as custodian. On December 29, 2010, 
Standard and Poor's Rating Services downgraded the financial strength of MB[A to 
B/Negativel--. 

The underlying securities for the repurchase agreement with MB[A are a Federa[ Home 
Loan Mortgage Corp Medium Term Note (CUS[P 31397JCN2) in the amount of 
$1,000,000 at 4.879% with a maturity of May 19, 2017; a Federa[ Home Loan Mortgage 
Corp Structured Pass Through Note (CUS[P 31397JME1) in the amount of $715,903 at 
0.3035% with a maturity of December 25, 2036; and Wells Fargo Advantage 
Government (CUS[P VP4560000) in the amount of $100,001 at .0100%. The Federa[ 
Home Loan Mortgage Corporation is a direct obligation of the federal government since 
its takeover on September 7, 2008, and is therefore unrated. This repurchase 
agreement represents 14% of investments. 

D. RECE[VABLES 

Receivab[es at December 31, 2011 consist of the following: 

Governmenta[ Business-type 
activities activities Tota[ ... _._._-

Misce[[aneous charges receivable $ 534,143 $ 255,537 $ 789,680 
Water charges receivable 187,776 187,776 
Wastewater charges receivable 153,544 153,544 
Solid waste charges receivable 95,359 95,359 
Drainage utility charges receivable 11 ,190 11,190 
Loans receivable 335,758 335,758 
Sales tax receivable 773,977 773,977 
Expanded lottery tax receivable 52,540 52,54Q 

Net receivables $ c~1'cG.il§,11a $. ZQ~-c>-iQ§ ~L;z~~~~-±a~:'l 

E. LOANS RECE[VABLE 

Loans receivable of the Economic Deve[opment Revo[ving Fund are as follows: 

[n 2006, the City issued $70,000 and $192,500 revolving loans to two local companies 
from funds paid in retirement of original Community Deve[opment B[ock Grant revolving 
loans. [n 2007, $35,000 was added to the $70,000 loan. The loans at six percent are to 
be repaid over a period of eleven years. At December 31, 2011 the loan balances were 
$69,065 and $112,263, respectively. 

[n 2007, the City issued a $90,000 revolving loan to a local company from funds paid in 
retirement of original Community Deve[opment B[ock Grant revolving loans. The loan at 
six percent is to be repaid over a period of nine years. At December 31, 2011, the loan 
balance was $60,227. 

[n 2008, the City issued a $75,000 revolving loan to a local company from funds paid in 
retirement of original Community Deve[opment B[ock Grant revolving loans. The loan at 
six percent is to be repaid over a period of seven years. At December 31,2011 the loan 
balance was $48,365. 
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E. LOANS RECEIVABLE (CONTINUED) 

In 2010, the City issued $30,000 and $8,000 revolving loans to two local companies 
from funds paid in retirement of original Community Development Block Grant revolving 
loans. The loans at six percent are to be repaid over a period of seven years. At 
December 31,2011 the loan balances were $25,831 and $0, respectively. 

In 2011, the City issued a $21,200 revolving loan to a local company from funds paid in 
retirement of original Community Development Block Grant revolving loans. The loan 
at six percent is to be repaid over a period of seven years. At December 31, 2011 the 
loan balance was 20,007. 

F. CAPITAL ASSETS 

A summary of changes in property and equipment of primary government follows: 

Governmental activities: 
Land 
Buildings and improvements 
Machinery and equipment 
Infrastructure 
Construction in progress 

Total capital assets at 
historical cost 

Less accumulated depreciation for: 
Buildings and improvements 
Machinery and equipment 
Infrastructure 

Total accumulated 
depreciation 

Governmental activities 
capital assets, net 

Business·type activities: 
Land 
Buildings and improvements 
Machinery and eqUipment 
Infrastructure 
Water rights 
Construction in progress 

Total capital assets at 
historical cost 

Less accumulated depreciationi 
amortization for: 

Buildings and improvements 
Machinery and equipment 
Infrastructure 
Water rights 

Total accumulated 
depreciation 

Business·type activities 
capital assets, net 

Beginning 
balance 

$ 5,582,267 
26,339,158 
10,727,885 

211,065,360 
_. 42,780,986 

296495,65§ 

7,842,417 
7,810,832 

...J.55 016 .il.1? 

170,670,191 

~):25,,§2li"~g~ 

$ 1,514,892 
14,944,816 
6,328,099 

46,339,954 
3,542,614 

15,662,645 

88,333,020 

12,997,111 
4,428,256 

10,340,438 
258,012 

_ 28,923811 

$ ... §Q,~Q9,2Q:J 
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Primary government 
Ending 

Increases Decreases balance 

$ $ $ 5,582,267 
32,001,824 58,340,982 
10,893,426 371,315 21,249,998 

8,871,041 219,936,401 
7,993,872 50,501,192 273,666 

. 59,72.0,163 ...5.0,872,507 305,383,31? 

1,122,475 8,964,892 
1,151,276 339,962 8,622,146 

.. ...1Jl12.,217 . .. .1 62.Jl2.92J2. . ~----.-.. -~.--'~ .. -

10,086,028 ... 332..962 .lillL416, 2 51 

Mi),§1.1.,.Jl5. $~l.l,g,}2"qj~ ~J,:2~L.~(i7,Q(2'" 

$ 12,000 $ $ 1 ,526,892 
2,992,539 1 ,775,346 16,162,009 

77,110 (58,025) 6,463,234 
788,286 47,128,240 

3,542,614 
.. .Jl.J 13,085 _.~4637_} .~l),357 

12,983,020 4,563694 96752346 

116,287 1,775,349 11,338,049 
362,589 (61,549) 4,852,394 
917,561 11,257,999 

62,027 . __ 320,039 ----

1 ,458,464 __ lJ13,800 
" .. , .. 27 768481 

$jL~24.,.?!j6 S2,849,§ .. 94 .... $68,98~,865 



1=. CAPITAL ASSETS (CONTINUED) 

Depreciation and amortization expense was charged to functions as follows: 

Governmental activities: 
General government 
Public safety 
Public works 
Culture and recreation 
Community services 
Indirect depreciation 
Internal service 

Total governmental activities 

Business-type activities: 
Water 
Wastewater 
Solid waste 
Drainage 

Total business-type activities 

$ 47,619 
255,529 
210,044 

1,742,067 
13,923 

7,812,276 
_----'4,570 

$ 661,739 
578,345 
180,967 
37,413 

$ lipJi,464 

Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Statement No, 34 (Capitalization of 
Interest Costs) requires that interest expenditures incurred during construction of 
assets be capitalized, FAS-62 (Capitalization of Interest Cost in Situations Involving 
Certain Tax-Exempt Borrowings and Certain Gifts and Grants) concludes that 
constructed assets financed with the proceeds of tax-exempt debt (if those funds are 
externally restricted to finance the acquisitions of the asset or used to service the 
related debt) should include capitalized interest only to the extent that interest cost 
exceeds interest earned on related interest-bearing investments acquired with 
proceeds of the related tax-exempt borrowing, During 2011 interest costs capitalized 
as a cost of construction totaled $289,294, 

A summary of changes in property and equipment of material governmental component 
units follows: 

Dodge City Public Library 

Governmental activities: 
Culture and recreation: 

Land 
Buildings and improvements 
Furniture and equipment 

Total capital assets at historical cost 

Less accumulated depreciation for: 
Buildings and improvements 
Furniture and equipment 

Total accumulated depreciation 

Governmental activities capital assets, net 

Development CorporatiQI} 

Governmental activities: 
Community services: 

Industrial park land and improvements 
Furniture and equipment 

Less accul11ulated depreciation for 
furniture and equipment 

Governmental activities capital assets, net 

Beginning 
~iiQUL. 

$ 338,171 
1,839,358 

_~5~60,397 

2,737,926 

1,227,047 
395,47.1), 

1,622525 

§~.;l,n5,'HU 

Beginning 
.. .JJalance 

$ 1,086,686 
_._ 625Q§ 

1,149,194 

.. __ .5_2".4 38 

_log:ease~, .. ,_ 

$ 
6,330 
9,355 

~ __ . .15 685 

51,482 
_._12021 

83,503 

~ ••... ~.J6Z •• 81ID. 

.---ltJ.g~ a s e s 

s 

Decreases 

$ 

14,904 

14,904 

__ ~14 904. 

14,90.4 

Decreases 

$ 33,404 

33,404 

Ending 
---'2?lance . 

$ 338,171 
1,845,688 

554848 

._f.J38,707 

1,278,529 
412,595 

1,691124 

L . .LQ'iLS.8j 

Ending 
... Mance ... _ . 

$ 1,053,282 
__-----.2£.508 

1 ,115.790 

U,!J\l2,1~§~,~J},Q,§§) ~;)3.,.4,Q1 :J;",1,.Q..lm,;2fl1 
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r=. CAPITAL ASSETS (CONTINUf':D) 

The industrial park land and improvements represent lots at the industrial park which 
are held for sale and are carried at cost. The cost includes improvements to the land to 
provide roads and utility access. These improvements we I'e financed with funds from a 
Community Development Block Grant which flowed through the City of Dodge City, 
Kansas, and they are not being depreciated. 

Beginning Ending 
HOl)sinq Authority _ balance .. _Increasel>. _ Decreas~.§.... _.balance._ .. 

Governmental activities: 
Community services: 

Land $ 363,865 $ $ $ 363,865 
Buildings and equipment 12,579,536 977,309 13,556,845 
Construction in progress 1,305,2,12 497,011 900,770 901,453 

14,248,613 1,474,320 900,770 14,822,163 
Less accumulated depreciation for 

buildings and equipment J,682,384 419,133 7,101,517 

Governmental activities capital assets, net ~_j',2§.R,£6~ $ ..• l,Oiif:),JIlZ. $.~_QQn,Jj'.q $, IJ.2,Q.!3.4§ 

G. INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES 

I nteliund balances are used when one fund has an obligation to transfer funds to 
another. The following IS a summary of interfund receivables and payables at 
December 31, 2011: 

f.\mount 

$ 13,684 
7,964 

12,019 
7,968 

151 
16,859 
26,705 

._.29292 

~ •• _JJA,£L4f 

Que to 

General Fund 
General Fund 
(Jeneral Fund 
General Fund 
General Fund 
General Fund 
General Fund 
Special Events Center 

Due from 

FAA Grant Ramp Expansion 
DJ-BX Grant 2010 
COPS Grant 2010 
Mobility Manager 
CDBG Housing 
Minibus 2011-12 
Energy Manger 
SEC Project Fund 

The General Fund made advances to grant funds that operate on a reimbursement 
basis that will be repaid when the reimbursement is received. The amount due to the 
Special Events Center fund is to reimburse for equipment to be paid for with Project 
monies. 

H. INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS 

During the course of normal operations, the City has numerous transactions between 
funds including expenditures and transfers of resources to provide services, construct 
assets and service debt. The governmental and proprietary funds financial statements 
generally reflect such transactions as transfers. The internal service funds record 
charges for service to City departments as operating revenue. All City funds record 
these payments to the internal service fund as operating expenses. 

Inlerfund transfers are made either for operating purposes or to transfer residual equity 
balances. 
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H. INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED) 

A summary of interfund transfers for 2011 is as follows: 

ICroXI! 

Operating transfers: 
General 
General 
General 
General 
Sales Tax 
Sales Tax 
Sales Tax 
Sales Tax 
All 4 Fun 
Development and Growth 
GO Bond & Interest 
Convention and Visitors 
Water 
Wastewater 
Solid Waste 
Drainage 

AI14 Fun $ 
Sales Tax Fund 
Special Events Center Fund 
Municipal Band 
ST Depreciation and Replacement 
SEC Revenue Bond Fund 
Special Events Center Fund 
Sales Tax Organizations 
General 
GO Bond and Interest 
GO 2011 Bonds 
General 
General 
General 
General 
General 

A summary of transfers to component units follows: 

To 

45,000 
50,000 
50,000 
18,500 

3,250,000 
2,636,702 

934,899 
464,000 

30,000 
450,000 

1,659,259 
60,000 

650,000 
388,880 
167,645 
35,000 

From 

Library Fund 
Library Employee Benefits Fund 

Dodge City Public Library 
Dodge City Public Library 

[ LONG-TERM LiABiLiTiES 

Long-term obligations 

Statutory 
authority 

KSA 12-1018 
K.SA Contract 
I(SA Contract 
K.SA 12-101a 
K.SA 12-197 
K.SA 12-197 
K.SA 12-197 
KSA 12-197 
K.SA Contract 
K.SA 12-1,118 
Resolution No. 2008-21 
K.8A 12-825d 
KSA 12-825d 
KSA 12-825d 
K.SA 12-825d 
K.SA 12-825d 

Amount 

$ 898,506 
219,446 

£J,11Z,il_~_4, 

The City's long-term liabilities are segregated between amounts to be repaid from 
governmental activities and amounts to be repaid from business-type activities, 

Governmental activities 
... To be paid wittl tax levies: 

Genera! obligation bonds $ 
Temporary notes 
Capital lease obligations 
Note payable 
Compensated absences 

To be paid with sales 
tax revenue: 

Debt 
outstanding 
January 1, 

2011 _.!\stgitio.Qs __ 

21,365,000 $ 
1,750,000 1,680,000 

16,325 388,357 
367,500 
817,852 115,241 

Debt 
Hetirernents outstanding 

and December 31, interest 
.. JJW.J!Yments 2011 .~I&JlSe __ 

$ 2,025,000 $ 19,340,000 $ 729,410 
3,430,000 12,294 

97,475 307,207 630 
30,000 337,500 

117,827 815,266 

Revenue bonds ---'lQ,Q15,OQQ _~ 650,QQQ2!l,]§§~QOO_--1768,)11 

._~33L677 _ 2,183,598 __ ~920 30;S 63,594,973 2510,705 

Business-type activities 
To be paid with utility 

revenues: 
Revenue bonds 16,080,000 
Loans 11,676,226 
Temporary notes 5,015,000 
Co 111 pensated abse nces. __ . _____ -.1_~Jill..1 

12,205,225 

. __ ~,,!j?1l 

970,000 
170,686 

_._.J7B 

15,110,000 
23,710,765 

5,015,000 
___ J26,1.91 

685,299 
105 542 
130:658 

-. -- -- .-----~---~--

_ 32 Jill.? 120J_~1.~!jJQ1. . ___ 1.J1Q86_4.1l961,!J..S6_ 92.L4'J.2 

~._.9,L:;;l§Jg() $ H,:3Z~,:29,9 ;:; .. 4,06J.12.Ci $JOZ,~§Jj,9~9, .~,.JA~~,:2Q4 

Added and deleted amounts for compensated absences do not include the current cost 
as such amounts are not readily determinable, 
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I. LONG-TEf'<.M LIABILITIES (CONTINUED) 

General obligation bonds: 

General obligation bonds are serial bonds to be retired through calendar year 2029. At 
December 31,2011 the bonds consist of the following: 

Interest Maturity Bonds 
rates dates outstanding 

Refunding and internal 
improvements, issued 
September 1, 2004 in the 
amount of $2,830,000 1.50% to 3.63% 09-01-15 $ 800,000 

Internal improvements, 
issued August 1, 2005 in the 
amount of $6,515,000 3.45% to 4.00% 09-01-25 4,640,000 

Internal improvements, 
issued November 1, 2006 in 
the amount of $1,095,000 3.50% to 3.85% 09-01-16 595,000 

Internal improvements, 
issued December 15, 2007 in 
the amount of $9,250,000 3.10%t03.85% 09-01-22 7,495,000 

Internal improvements, 
issued December 1, 2008 in 
the amount of $1,155,000 3.25% to 4.25% 09-01-18 840,000 

Internal improvements, 
issued October 7,2009 in 
the amoullt of $6,280,000 1.75% to 4.25% 09-01-29 4970000 

.---.~-... --

~ •.. 12.!~.4Q,.Q .. QQ. 

Principal and interest payments of general obligation bonds required to be made in the 
following years are: 

Principal Interest Total 
due __ due .Q.~ 

2012 $ 1,895,000 $ 685,650 $ 2,580,650 
2013 1,850,000 628,428 2,478,428 
2014 1,605,000 572,478 2,177,478 
2015 1,670,000 519,640 2,189,640 
2016 1,365,000 461,548 1,826,548 
2017-2021 6,505,000 1,591,331 8,096,331 
2022-2026 3,545,000 511,341 4,056,341 
2027-2029 905,000 77,989 982,989 

.$~_340,000 .$ . 5,04~405 $._f1,]8 fl,4 0 l) 

The amount of long-term debt that can be incurred by the City is limited by K.SA 
10-308. Total outstanding bonded indebtedness during a year can be no greater than 
30% of the assessed value of taxable tangible property as certified to the county clerk 
on the preceding August 25. As of December 31, 2011, the amount of outstanding 
bonded indebtedness was equal to 17.86% of property assessments as of July 1, 
2010. 
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I. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (CONTINUED) 

Capital leases: 

The following is a description of capital lease obligations of the City: 

Fire Truck, dated May 20, 2011, 
in the original amount of $388,357 

Interest 
rates 

2.24% 

Maturity Outstanding 
date balance 

Assets recorded under capital leases were $388,357 and corresponding accumulated 
depreciation at December 31,2011 was $27,740. 

Payments for the fire truck are made from the Capital Equipment Reserve Fund. 

The following is a schedule of future minimum lease payments under capital leases, 
together with the net present value of the minimum lease payments as of 
December 31,2011. 

Year ending December 31 , 

2012 
2013 
2014 
2015 

Less: /\mount I'epresenting interest 

Present value of lease payments 

Amount - -

$ 81,150 
81,150 
81,150 

___G1.150 

324,600 
. ____ 11,393 

$_30],20] 
._.~_ •••• ~~~'u •••• _,,_, ... _ •• _ 

For purposes of comparing actual expenditures to budget, only the amounts actually 
due in the current period are included in accordance with K.SA 10-1116b. 

Note payable: 

The City entered into an agreement during 2006 to purchase $500,000 of property and 
equipment, at zero percent interest, with title deeded to the City upon execution of the 
agreement The agreement contains a reconveyance option commencing January 1, 
2007 and expiring December 31, 2011, The City has the absolute and unconditional 
right to reconvey the property and equipment back to the seller during the option 
period. If the City elects to exercise the reconveyance option, it will provide written 
notice to the seller within 30 days. The seller will retain all payments received prior to 
the reconveyance and all payments due at the time of such reconveyance. 

The following is a schedule of future minimum payments as of December 31 , 2011: 

2012 

Revenue bonds: 

F~evenue bonds to be paid from sales tax revenue consist of the following: 

Series 2009 sales tax projects 

50 

Interest 
rates 

Maturity 
dates --------

Bonds 
outstallCjing 

4.10% to 50% 06-01-34 $Ji),3£l§,QQQ 



I. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (CONTINUED) 

Revenue bonds (continued) 

The aggregate annual principal and interest payments of revenue bonds required to be 
made in the following years are: 

Principal Interest Total 
_du~ due _due. 

2012 $ 705,000 $ 1,749,740 $ 2,454,740 
2013 765,000 1,727,690 2,492,690 
2014 825,000 1,703,840 2,528,840 
2015 890,000 1,678,115 2,568,115 
2016 955,000 1,650,440 2,605,440 
2017-2021 5,915,000 7,666,632 13,581,632 
2022-2026 8,410,000 6,166,330 14,576,330 
2027-2031 11,745,000 3,882,895 15,627,895 
2032-2034 9,155,000 706,375 9,861,375 

139,l§~QQ.Q ~ •. hc9",,~)Z,Q5.Z $.~2~,.f9LQ~Z 

The revenue bond ordinance for the above bonds provides for deposits to the principal 
and interest account each year to provide for the payment of principal and interest on 
the bonds as they become due and payable. 

Temporary notes: 

The City issued temporary notes Series 2009-1 on December 7,2009, Series 2010-1 
on December 22,2010 and Series 2011-1 on December 15, 2011 for main trafficway 
improvements. The original principal is $565,000, $1,185,000 and $1,680,000 at a rate 
of 1.55%, 1.50% and .65%, maturing September 1, 2012 for Series 2009-1 and Series 
2010-1 and December 15, 2012 for Series 2011-1. Principal and interest payments 
required to be made in the following years are: 

2012 

Business-type activities 

Revenue bonds: 

Principal 
due 

Interest 
_ due __ 

Total 
due 

$ 3,430,000 $ 37,430 $ 3,467,430 

Revenue bonds, secured by revenues derived from the operations of the applicable 
enterprise fund types, consist of the following: 

Series 2003 waterworks utility 
Series 2003 wastewater utility 

Interest 
rates 

2.00% to 4.625% 
200% to 4.625% 

51 

Maturity 
dates 

12-01-23 
12-01-23 

Bonds 
outstanding 

$ 4,533,000 
_10,57]J)QQ 

~.lIi,lJQ,9Q.Q 



I. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (CONTINUED) 

BusinessJyQ.Q.zctivitiesJgon1!,l}IJedj 

Revenue bonds (continued): 

The aggregate annual principal and interest payments required to be made in the 
following years are: 

Waterworks Wastewater 
utHity util.ity 

Interest Total series series 
2003 2003 due due ------

2012 $ 300,000 $ 700,000 $ 653,774 $ 1,653,774 
2013 310,500 724,500 617,524 1,652,524 
2014 334,500 780,500 578,194 1,693,194 
2015 322,500 752,500 536,538 1,611,538 
2016 348,000 812,000 491,938 1,651,938 
2017-2021 1,990,500 4,644,500 1,631,789 8,266,789 
2022-2023 927,000 2,163,000 214,100 3,304,100 

l. ~~,i5 3 ~QQ.Q L:!Q,§ZL9Qi{ Lj.LZ.?~,a~l 1~19~ 8:U 8til 

Revenue bond ordinances for the above bonds provide for deposits to principal and 
interest accounts each year to provide for the payment of principal and interest on the 
bonds as they become due and payable. 

Loans: 

The City approved a loan agreement effective February 6, 2001, with the State of 
Kansas Department of Health and Environment for water distribution improvement 
projects in the amount of $4,394,239. The intel'est rate is 4.25% per annum and 
maturity is February 1, 2023. The principal and interest payments required to be made 
in the following years are: 

Principal Interest Total 
due -_. ,.,.,,9 u ~ .. _ due 

2012 $ 178,018 $ 98,815 $ 276,833 
2013 185,664 91,798 277,462 
2014 193,638 84,480 278,118 
2015 201,956 76,848 278,804 
2016 210,630 68,888 279,518 
2017-2021 1,196,879 212,549 1,409,428 
2022-2023 410,961 16,140 427,101 

,~ ,.,?,.,f5.,LLZ;t'§, $" ._§49,51Jl L 3,2?'L264 

The City approved a loan agreement effective September 22, 2009, with the State of 
Kansas Department of Health and Environment for a water reclamation facility in the 
amount of $29,532,000. The interest rate is 2.83% per annum. The loan repayment 
schedule will be established upon completion of the project with semi-annual payments 
over a twenty year period. Accumulated advances on the loan at December 31, 2011 
were $21,133,018. 
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I. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (CONTINUED) 

12_~Jsiness_=t'LP_~_ activities (contirlu~9) 

Temporary notes: 

The City issued temporary notes Series 2008A on December 1, 2008 for the purchase 
of water rights. The original principal is $2,265,000 at a rate of 3.50%, maturing 
September 1, 2012. The City issued temporary notes Series 2009-1 on December 7, 
2009 for various water supply system improvements. The original principal is 
$2,750,000 at a rate of 1.55%, maturing September 1, 2012. Principal and interest 
payments required to be made in the following years are: 

Principal 
due 

2012 $ 5,015,000 $ 

Sales tax projects revenue bond disclosures 

Interest 
due 

Total 
_----"d'-"u"'e __ _ 

121,923 $ 5,136,923 

Insurance is carried through St. Paul Travelers Insurance Company on the Special 
Events Center in the amount of $33,000,000 with an additional $4,000,000 for personal 
property effective January 1, 2011 through January 1, 2012. The premium for this 
coverage was $39,600 plus $4,800 for personal property. 

Balance sheets of the Series 2009 Sales Tax Revenue Bonds are the Special Events 
Center Revenue Bond Fund and Special Events Center Project Fund on page 
seventeen. 

Statement of revenue, expenditures, and changes in fund balance of the Series 2009 
Sales Tax I=<.evenue Bonds are the Special Events Center Revenue Bond Fund and 
Special Events Center Project Fund on page nineteen_ 

The City complied with Rebate Covenants outlined in Section 1202 of Resolution 2009-
09. 

The City completed the disclosure requirements outlined in Section 1301 of Resolution 
2009-09. 

J. LONG-TERM DEBT - COMPONENT UNITS 

Development Corporation - note payable 

The note payable is due to a private company. It is payable upon the sale of the land 
and industrial park improvements with no set termination date. Upon the sale of any 
property, seventy-five percent of the net sales price of the first $50,000 and all net 
sales price over $50,000 is payable for interest accumulated to that date and then as a 
reduction to principal. If at termination, the Organization elects not to pay the principal 
and interest due, all land and industrial park improvements will be transferred to the 
lender. Interest is computed annually from July 1 through June 30 using the New York 
prime rate on June 30 of the prior year. Interest compounds as of June 30 of each 
year. 

Accrued interest on the note plus the amount of the note payable have been limited to 
a prior year estimated fair value of the property. During 2011 no additional interest was 
accrued on the note. No appraisal of the properiy has been done in order to assess 
whether the accrued interest recorded plus the related debt accurately reflect the 
Organization's liability on this property. 

53 



K. CONDUIT DEBT OBUGATIONS 

From time to time, the City has issued Industrial Revenue Bonds to provide financial 
assistance to private~sector entities for the acquisition and construction of industrial 
and commercial facilities deemed to be in the public interest. The bonds are secured 
by the property financed and are payable solely from payments received on the 
underlying mortgage loans. Upon repayment of the bonds, ownership of the acquired 
facilities transfers to the private~sector entity served by the bond issuance. Neither the 
City, the State, nor any political subdivision thereof is obligated in any manner for 
repayment of the bonds. Accordingly, the bonds are not reporied as liabilities in the 
accompanying financial statements. 

As of December 31,2011, there were series of Industrial Revenue Bonds outstanding, 
with an aggregate principal amount payable of $114,429,106. 

L. SPECIAL OBUGATION BONDS 

The City approved a designated zone of the City as a Rural Housing Incentive District. 
The District is designated to reduce housing construction costs incurred by contractors 
through incentives that are passed on to home buyers making housing more 
affordable. On September 15, 2011, the City issued $550,000 of special obligation 
bonds. The repayment of these bonds will be repaid with ad valorem taxes pledged as 
special assessments. The City is not obligated in any manner for repayment of the 
bonds. Accordingly, the debt service transactions have been accounted for in an 
agency fund and the bonds are not reported as liabilities in the accompanying financial 
statements. 

M. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN 

Plan description. The City of Dodge City contributes to the Kansas Public Employees 
Retirement System (KPERS) and the Kansas Police and Firemen's Retirement System 
(KP&F). Both are cost~sharing multiple~employer defined benefit pension plans as 
provided by K.SA 74~4901, et seq. KPERS and KP&F provide retirement benefits, life 
insurance, disability income benefits, and death benefits. Kansas law establishes and 
amends benefit provisions. KPERS and KP&F issue a publicly available financial 
report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information. 
Those reports may be obtained by writing to KPEI~S (611 S. Kansas, Suite 100, 
Topeka, KS 66603~3803) or by calling 1~888~275~5737. 

Funding Policy K.SA 74~4919 establishes the KPERS member~employee 
contribution rate at 4% of covered salary. K.SA 74~4975 establishes KP&F member~ 
employee contribution rate at 7% of covered salary. The employer collects and remits 
member~employee contributions according to the provisions of section 414(h) of the 
Internal Revenue Code. State law provides that the employer contribution rates be 
determined annually based on the results of an annual actuarial valuation. KPERS and 
KP&F are funded on an actuarial reserve basis. State law sets a limitation on annual 
increases in the contribution rates. The KPERS employer rate established for the year, 
2011 is 7.74%. The City of Dodge City's employer contributions to KPERS for the 
years ending December 31, 2011, 2010, and 2009 were $424,380, $377,892, and 
$339,687, respectively, equal to the required contributions for each year. The KP&F 
employer rate established for fiscal years beginning in 2011 is 14.57%. Employers 
participating in KP&F also make contributions to amortize the liability for past service 
costs, if any, which is determined separately for each participating employer. The City 
of Dodge City's contributions to KP&F for the years ending December 31,2011,2010, 
and 2009 were $722,579, $666,444, and $773,293, respectively, equal to the required 
contributions for each year. 

The Dodge City Public Library, the Dodge City ~ Ford County Development Corporation 
and the Dodge City Housing Authority all participate in KPERS. The actuarially 
determined contribution requirements of these component units were met 
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N. RISK MANAGEMENT 

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to tOilS; theft of, damage to, and 
destruction of assets; errors and omissiollS; injuries to employees; natural disasters; 
and medical needs of employees. The City participates in a public entity risk pool to 
cover worker's compensation claims. The City purchases commercial insurance to 
cover property, liability and medical needs of employees. There have been no 
significant reductions in coverage from the prior year. Settled claims have not 
exceeded coverage in any of the past three years. 

O. CONTINGENCIES 

The City receives significant financial assistance from numerous federal and state 
governmental agencies in the form of grants and state pass-through aid. The 
disbursement of funds received under these programs generally requires compliance 
with terms and conditions specified in the grant agreements and is subject to audit 
Any disallowed claims resulting from such audits could become a liability of the 
General Fund or other applicable funds. However, in the opinion of management, any 
such disallowed claims will not have a material effect on any of the financial statements 
of the City at December 31,2011. 

P JOINT VENTURES 

On January 1, 1993, the City of Dodge City, Kansas, entered into a joint venture with 
Ford County, Kansas, for the operation of a communications center. By joint resolution 
the Dodge City/Ford County Emergency Communications Board was created to 
operate the Dodge City/Ford County Communications Department. The Board 
consists of equal membership of City and County personnel. The department provides 
emergency communications for City and County agencies and is physically located in 
the Ford County Government Center. The budgeted operating expenditures are 
shared equally by the two governments. The joint venture assets of $35,099 are fully 
depreciated. 

On July 21, 1997, the City of Dodge City, Kansas entered into a joint venture with Ford 
County, Kansas, for the construction and operation of certain public projects. On 
June 10, 1997, the voters of Dodge City and of Ford County approved a one-half 
percent city-wide and a one-half percent county-wide retailer's sales tax to finance 
these projects. The projects include but are not limited to the following: air 
conditioning at the Civic Center building; an outdoor motor sports complex; field sport 
facilities, including a baseball/softball complex and additional soccer facilities and 
renovation of existing facilities; and a special events center. 

All City sales tax revenues for these projects are deposited into the Sales Tax Fund. 
County sales tax revenues which are designated for Ford County and the City of 
Dodge City are transferred to the City and deposited into the same fund. All 
expenditures from the Sales Tax Fund are subject to approval of the City Commission. 
All real estate acquired for the projects is titled to the City. 

The interlocal agreement was amended on August 10, 2005. The agreement creates a 
Community Facilities Advisory Board (CFAB) to serve as the project review and 
advisory committee. There are to be seven members on the Board: one City 
Commissioner, one County Commissioner, four at-large members and the Chairperson 
of the Board of Directors of the Dodge City/Ford County Development Corporation or 
his designee. 
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F) JOINT VENTUI,\ES (CONTINUED) 

On November 18, 2010, the City of Dodge City, Kansas entered into a joint venture 
with Venuworks of Dodge City, LLC. The agreement calls for Venuworks to operate 
and manage the Special Events Center and the Civic Center. The City retains title and 
ownership of the Centers. Venuworks receives a flat monthly management fee plus 
variable management fees for food and beverage sales, contractually obligated 
incomes and fulfillment fees. Variable commissions are capped on an annual basis. 

Q CONSTRUCTION COMMITMENTS 

As of December 31, 2011, the City had the following commitments with respect to 
unfinished capital projects and repairs: 

Project 

Wastewater Treatment Plant 

Primary Lift Station 

Component Unit - Housing 
Authority Construction Project 

R. PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT 

Project 
commitments 

authorized 

$ 21,449,908 

2,112,930 

836,240 

Remaining 
Expenditures financial 

to date comm itment 

$ 19,673,175 $ 1,776,733 

1,599,671 513,259 

214,839 621,401 

A prior period adjustment was made in the Wastewater Fund resulting in an incl·ease to 
net assets and capital assets in the amount of $329,757. The adjustment was made to 
capitalize a partial payment made on a sewer lagoon cover that was originally recorded 
as expense. 

S. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

Management has evaluated subsequent events through August 9, 2012, the date on 
which the financial statements were available to be used. Management's evaluation 
concluded that there are no subsequent events that are required to be recognized or 
disclosed in these financial statements. 
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SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
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CITY OF DODGE CITY, KANSAS 

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

bSSETS 

Cash and investments 
Property taxes receivable 
Due frorn other governrnents 
Other receivables 
Due from other funds 
Inventories 
Restricted cash and investments 

Total assets 

Liabilities: 
Accounts payable 
Payroll liabilities 
Due to other funds 
Deferred revenue 

Total liabilities 

Fund balances: 
Nonspendable: 

Endowment 
Long-term receivables 

Restricted: 
Capital projects 
Grants 

Assigned: 
Encumbrances 
Other capital expenditures 
Comrnunity service and promotion 
Other purposes 
Designed for subsequent 

year's expenditures 
Unassigned 

December 31,2011 

$ 

Special 
revenue 
funds 

8,283,391 
1,634,850 

135,411 
414,448 
29,292 
33,539 

$ 10,530,931 

$ 394,426 
10,725 
85,350 

2,378,686 

2869187 
---'---'--

100,000 
155,946 

31,675 

331,029 
4,331,015 

20,429 
245,793 

2,555,608 
(109,751) 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Capital 
projects 
funds 

381,198 
251,093 

777,468 

1,409,759 

58,524 
893 

251,093 

310,510 _ .. _"'----

735,188 

364,061 

Total 
nonrnajor 

governmental 
funds 

$ 

$ 

$ 

8,664,589 
1,885,943 

135,411 
414,448 
29,292 
33,539 

777,468 

11,940,690 

452,950 
11,618 
85,350 

2,629,779 

3,179,697 

100,000 
155,946 

735,188 
31,675 

331,029 
4,695,076 

20,429 
245,793 

2,555,608 
_______ --'-(1'-"-09,751) 

Total fund 
balances __ 7-,--,6_61)44 1 ,099,249 8,760,993 

Total liabilities and 
fund balances 
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$ 10,530,931 $ 1,409,759 $ 11,940,690 



CITY OF DODGE CITY, KANSAS 

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 

December 31,2011 

Library 
Special employee 
liability Library benefits Building 

ASSETS 

Cash and investments $ 85,982 $ 26,786 $ 9,999 $ 286,712 
Property taxes receivable 628,407 772,426 234,017 
Due from other governments 
Other receivables 17,030 
Due from other funds 
Inventories 

Total assets $ 714,389 $ 799,212 $ 244,016 $ 303,742 

LIABILITIES AND 
fUN!} BAL6NCEQ 

Liabilities: 
Accounts payable $ 3,539 $ $ $ 
Payroll liabilities 947 
Due to other funds 
Deferred revenue 628,407 7l2,426 234,017 

" 

Total liabilities 632,893 772,426 234,017 

Fund balances: 
Nonspendable: 

Endowment 
Long-term receivables 

Restricted for grants 
Assigned: 

Encumbrances 
Other capital expenditures 303,742 
Community service and promotion 
Other purposes 68,974 22,495 6,143 
Designed for subsequent 

year's expenditures 12,522 4,291 3,856 
Unassigned 

Total fund balances 81,496 26,786 --~~~ 303,742 

Total liabilities and 
fund balances $ 714,389 S 799,212 $ 244,016 $ 303,7 42 
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Convention 
and visitors 

$ 731,610 

$ 731,610 

$ 

$ 

24,365 
3,786 

28,151 

208,614 

494,845 

703,459 

731,610 

$ 

$ 

c· 

" 

Special 
streets and 
highways 

80,101 

80,101 

9,142 
3,06" 

. __ 1,-,2.,207 

14,456 

4,915 

48,523 

67,894 

$ 80,101 

Special 
park and 
recreation 

$ 167,861 

$ 167,861 

$ 

90,000 

77,861 

167,861 

S 167,861 

$ 

$ 

S 

Special 
alcohol 

and drug 

29,824 

29,824 

29,824 

29,824 

29,824 

Alcohol and 
dl'ug safety 

action 

$ 46,497 

$ 46,497 

$ 705 

705 

45,792 

45,792 

S 46,497 
=--== 
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Special law 
enforcement 

trust 

$ 27,101 

$ 27,101 

27,101 

27,101 

$ 21,101 

Economic 
development 

revolving 

$ 157,721 

335,758 

$ 493,479 

$ 

337,533 

$ 118,922 

$ 118,922 

s 

r<oof 
insurance 

repairs 

$ 253,404 

$ 253,404 

$ 

Medical 
insurance 
reserve 

$ 662,222 

5,187 

$ 667,409 

$ 28,513 

337,533 28,513 _--=c::..:..;,,-. 

100,000 
155,946 

253,404 

18,922 92,618 

546,278 

155,94G_ 118,922 253,404 638,896 

S 493,479 S 118,922 S 253,404 $ 667,409 
... -



CITY OF DODGE CITY, KANSAS 

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS (CONTINUED) 

December 31, 2011 

Capital Underage FAA grant 
equipment alcohol ramp 

reserve abuse DARE expansion 

ASSETS 

Cash and investments $ 856,162 $ 6,424 $ 26,909 $ 
Property taxes receivable 
Due from other governments 16,240 
Other receivables 758 
Due from other funds 
Inventories 

Total assets 162 $ 6,424 $ 27,667 $ 16,240 

LIABILITIES ANJ2 
FUNl2.flALANJ;S=S 

Liabilities: 
Accounts payable $ 167,898 $ $ 710 $ 2,556 
Payroll liabilities 
Due to other funds 13,684 
Deferred revenue 

Total liabilities 167,898 710 16,240 

ICund balances: 
Nonspendable: 

Endowment 
Long-term receivables 

Restricted for grants 
Assigned: 

Encumbrances 
Other capital expenditures 235,957 
Community service and promotion 
Other purposes 111 3,995 
Designed for subsequent 

year's expenditures 452,307 6,313 22,962 
Unassigned 

Total fund balances 688,264 6,424 26,957 

Total liabilities and 
fund balances $ 856,162 $ 6,424 $ 27,667 < 

'" 16,240 
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$ 

$ 

$ 

ARFF 
building 

6,156 

6,156 

$ 

$ 

$ 

OJ·.sx 
grant 
2010 

7,964 

7,964 

$ 

$ 

$ 

COPS 
grant 
2010 

1,368 
10,651 

12,019 

s 

$ 

Byrne 
grant 
2009 

21,616 

21,616 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Mobility 
manager 

grant 

11,871 

11,871 

7,964 12,019 7,968 

7,964 12,019 7,968 

6,156 21,616 3,903 

____ 6-'-,_15_6_ 21,616 3,903 

s 6,156 s 7,964 $ 12,019 s 21,616 11,871 
=== 



CITY OF DODGE CITY, KANSAS 

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS (CONTINUED) 

Decembel 31, 2011 

Minibus Minibus CDBG 
grant grant housing Energy 

2011-12 2010-11 grant manager 

,'\SSETS 

Cash and investments $ $ 1,070 $ $ 
Property taxes receivable 
Due from other governments 17,491 151 27,786 
Other receivables 
Due from other funds 
Inventories 

Total assets $ 17,491 $ 1,070 $ 151 $ 2.7 ,786 

LlABI LlTI ES _,'\1)1) 

LLlJ\jQJll"kAi'tQf§ 

Liabilities: 
Accounts payable $ 640 $ $ $ 56 
Payroll liabilities 1 ,070 1 ,025 
Due to other funds 16,859 151 26,705 
Deferred revenue 

Total liabilities 17,499 1 ,070 151 27,/86 

Fund balances: 
Nonspendable 

Endowment 
Long-term receivables 

Restricted for grants 
Assigned: 

Encumbrances 
Other capital expenditures 
Community service and promotion 
Other purposes 
Designed for subsequent 

year's expenditures 
LJ ndesignated (8) 

Total fund balances (8) 

Total liabilities and 
fund balances $ 17,491 S 1,070 151 $ 27,786 
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$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Special 
events 
center 

342,457 

45,064 
29,292 
33,539 

450,352 

153,792 

406,303 

560,095 

(109,743) 

(109,743) 

450,352 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

SMPC 
trust 

17,959 

17,959 

17,959 

17,959 

17,959 
===:: 

$ 

$ 

$ 

S 

Municipal 
band 

20,429 

20,429 

20,429 

20,429 

20,429 

Total 
nonmajor 
special 

revenue funds 

S 8,283,391 
1,634,850 

135,411 
414,448 

29,292 
33,539 

$ 10,530,931 

$ 394,426 

10,72" 
85,350 

__ 2,378,686 

2,869,187 

100,000 
155,946 
31,675 

331,029 
4,331,015 

20,429 
245,793 

2,555,608 
(109,751) 

7,661,744 

$ 10,530,931 



CITY OF DODGE CITY, KANSAS 

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS 

December 31, 2011 

Total 
nonmajor 

Capital GO bonds GO bonds capital 
improvement 2007 2011 projects funds 

ASSETS 

Cash and investments $ 381,198 $ $ $ 381,198 
Property taxes receivable 251,093 251,093 
Restricted cash and investments 36,496 740,972 777,468 

Total assets $ 632,291 $ 36,496 $ 740,972 $ 1,409,759 

lJ,lIJ3JlJIIfiU:lNPEIJ N D BALAN C E $. 

Liabilities: 
Accounts payable $ 16,244 $ 29,614 c 

~ 12,666 $ 58,524 
Payroll liabilities 893 893 
Due to other funds 
Deferred reven ue 251,093 __ 251,093 

Total liabilities 268,230 29,614 12,666 310,510 

Fund balances: 
Restricted for capital projects 6,882 728,306 735,188 
Assigned to other capital 

expenditures 364,061 364,061 

Total fund balances 364,061 6,882 728,306 1,099,249 

Total liabilities and 
fund balances $ 632,291 $ 36,496 $ 740,972 $ 1,409,759 
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CITY OF DODGE CITY, KANSAS 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUE:, E:XPE:NDITURE:S, 
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

NONMAJOR GOVE:RNMENTAL FUNDS 

Year ended December 31, 2011 

Revenue: 
Taxes 
I ntergovernrnental 
Charges for services 
Insurance recovery 
Investment earnings 
Contribution from property owners 
Miscellaneous 

Total revenue 

Expenditures: 
Current: 

General government 
Public safety 
Public works 
Culture and recreation 
Community services 
Capital projects 

Total expenditures 

Excess (deficiency) of 
revenue over expenditures 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Transfers in 
Transfers out 
Transfers to component units 

Total other financing 
sources and uses 

Net change in fund balances 

Fund balances, beginning of year 

Fund balances, end of year 

Special 
revenue 

funds 

$ 1,548,691 
2,635,072 
1,339,345 

421,537 
24,218 

223,441 

6,192,304 
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Capital 
projects 
funds 

$ 298,815 

520,000 

818,815 

Total 
non major 

governmental 
funds 

$ 1,847,506 
2,635,072 
1,339,345 

421,537 
24,218 

520,000 
223,441 

7,011,119 



CITY OF DODGE CITY, KANSAS 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES, AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 

Year ended December 31, 2011 

Library 
Special employee 
liability Library benefits Building -

Revenue: 
Taxes $ 394,823 $ 921,000 S 218,000 $ 14,868 
I ntergovernillental 56,854 
Charges for services 
Insurance recovery 
Investment earnings 448 
Miscellaneous 46,595 

Total revenue 394,823 921,000 218,000 118,765 

Expenditures: 
Current: 

General government 453,034 
Public safety 54,952 
Public works 
Culture and recreation 209,137 
Community services ------- -----

Total expenditures 507,986 209,137 

Excess (deficiency) 
of revenue over 
expenditures (113,163) 921,000 218,000 (90,372) 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Transfers in 
Transfers out 
Transfers to component 

units (898,506) (219,446) 

Total other financing 
sources and uses (898,506) (219,446) 

Net change in 
fund balances (113,163) 22,494 (1,446) (90,372) 

Fund balances, 
beginning of year 194,659 4,292 11,445 394,114 

Fund balances, end of year $ 81,496 $ 26,786 $ 9,999 $ 303,742 
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Special Special Special Alcohol and 
Convention streets and park and alcohol drug safety 
and visitors highways recreation and drug action 

$ $ $ $ $ 
650,594 695,430 99.187 99.187 

25,130 13,050 

23,547 35,070 

699,271 730,500 99.187 99.187 13,050 

22,149 
743,498 

80,000 
561,047 

----~~--
...... _1,11 ,618 

561 ,047 ~_743.498_ ,, __ 80,000_ 111,618 22,149 

138,224 __ (12,998) 19,787 (11,831) (9,099) 

(60,000) 

(60,000) 

78,224 (12,998) 19.187 (11,831) (9,099) 

625,235 80,892 148,074 41,655 54,891 

$ 703,459 $ 67,894 $ 167,861 $ 29,824 $ 45,792 



CITY OF DODGE CITY, KANSAS 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXlcoENDITURES, AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS (CONTINUED) 

Year ended December 31, 2011 

Sales tax 
Development Sales tax depreciation and 

All 4 Fun and growth organizations replacernent 

Revenue: 
Taxes $ $ $ $ 
Intergovernmental 637,097 
Charges for services 1,462 
Insurance recovery 
I nvestment earnings 
Miscellaneous 

Total revenue 1,462 637,097 

Expenditures: 
Current: 

General government 
Public safety 
Public works 
Culture and recreation 15,943 
Community services 638,920 

Total expenditures 15,943 638,920 

I"xcess (deficiency) 
of revenue over 
expenditures (14,481) 637,097 (638,920) 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Transfers in 45,000 464,000 3,250,000 
Transfers out (30,000) (450,000) 
Transfers to component 

units 

Total other financing 
sources and uses 15,000 (450,000) 464,000 3,250,000 

Net change in 
fund balances 519 187,097 (174,920) 3,250,000 

ICund balances, 
beginning of year 25 596,669 489,275 

Fund balances, end of year $ 544 $ 783,766 $ 314,355 $ 3,250,000 
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Special law Economic Roof Medical 
enforcement development Hoover insurance insurance 

trust revolving trust repairs reserve 

$ $ $ S $ 

8,465 88,177 
421,537 

22,934 136 
5,000 57,075 

13,465 80,009 136 421,537 88,177 

229,809 
7,000 

6,600 

22,560 

__ -,7-,-,,0c::OO ___ 22_,5_6_'0_ 236,409 

57,449 136 185,128 88,177 

6,465 57,449 136 185,128 88,177 

20,636 98,497 118,786 68,276 550,719 

$ 27,101 $ 155,946 $ 118,922 $ 253,404 $ 638,896 



CITY OF DODGE CITY, KANSAS 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES, AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - NONMAJOR GOVEI'<-NMENTAL FUNDS 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS (CONTINUED) 

Revenue: 
Taxes 
Intergovernmental 
Charges for services 
Insurance recovery 
Investment earnings 
Miscellaneous 

Total revenue 

Expenditures: 
Current: 

Genera! government 
Public safety 
I"ublie works 
Culture and recreation 
Community services 

Total expenditures 

Excess (deficiency) 
of revenue over 
expenditures 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Transfers in 
Transfers out 
Transfers to component 

units 

Total other financing 
sources and uses 

Net change in 
fund balances 

Fund balances, 
beginning of year 

Fund balances, end of year 

Year ended December 31, 2011 

Capital 
equipment 

reserve 

$ 

5,547 

5,547 

31,995 
119,178 
217,277 

44,141 

(407,044) 

1,095,308 

$ 688,264 
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Underage 
alcohol 
abuse 

$ 
6,550 

6,550 

6,439 

111 

111 

6,313 

$ 6,424 

DARE 

$ 

12,276 

12,276 

9,410 

2,866 

24,091 

$ 26,957 

$ 

FAA grant 
rotating 
beacon 

6,068 

320 

6,388 

6,388 

$ 



FAA grant OJ-8X COPS Bureau of 
ramp ARFF grant grant Justice 

expansion building 2010 2010 2008 

$ $ S $ S 
59,022 19,761 8,964 91,368 7,709 

2,973 

61,995 19,761 8,964 91,368 7,709 

17,253 8,964 91,368 7,709 
61,995 

-----_ ... - --_ .. _._-
-.-~~--- ----

61,995 _,, __ 17,253 8,964 91,368 7,109 

2,508 

2,508 

3,648 

$ 6,156 $ $ $ 



CITY OF DODGE CITY, KANSAS 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES, AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS (CONTINUED) 

Year ended December 31,2011 

Mobility Minibus Minibus Bicycle 
Byrne manager grant grant pedestrian 

grant 2009 grant 2011-12 2010-11 path 

Revenue: 
Taxes $ $ $ $ $ 
Intergovernmental 61,840 41,834 35,135 3,001 
Charges for services 
Insurance recovery 
Investment earnings 
Miscellaneous 8,123 17,829 8,306 

Total revenue 69,963 59,663 43,441 3,001 

Expenditures: 
Current: 

General government 
Public safety 14,140 
Public works 66,060 59,671 44,585 
Culture and recreation (14,939) 
Community services ----- ------ ------ -------- --------

Total expenditures 14,140 66,060 ___ 59,671 _ 44,585 ___ L'i<l,93 9)_ 
-.-.-~,., ... -,.---.~" ... -

Excess (deficiency) 
of revenue over 
expenditures (14,140) 3,903 ______ (~L _______ i1-,--1_4~ 17,940 

... ---~-.----

Other financing sources (uses): 
Transfers in 
Transfers out 
Transfers to component 

units 

Total other financing 
sources and uses 

Net change in 
fund balances (14,140) 3,903 (8) (1,144) 17,940 

Fund balances, 
beginning of year 35,756 1,144 (17,940) 

Fund balances, end of year $ 21,616 $ 3,903 $ (8) $ $ 
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Total 
CDBG Special nonmajol" 

housing Energy events SMPC Municipal special 
grant manager center trust band revenue funds 

$ S $ $ $ 1,548,691 
151 43,904 10,216 2,635,072 

1,203,061 1,339,345 
421,537 

21 650 29 24,218 
780 223,441 

151 43,925 1,203,711 10,216 809 6,192,304 

84,6l3 799,511 
358,562 

1,206,074 
2,251,542 110,001 17,984 2,713,809 

151 1,334,296 
-"'---' ----_ .... 

151 84,673 _~51,542_ 110,001 17,984 6,412,252 ._--- _ .. -



CITY OF DODGE CITY, KANSAS 

COMBININC; STATEMENT or: REVENUE, EXPENDITUI,\ES, AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

CAPITAL. PROJECTS FUNDS 

Year ended December 31,2011 
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Total 
Special nonrnajor 

GO bonds obligation capital 
2011 bonds projects funds 

$ $ $ 298,815 

520,000 520,000 

520,000 818,815 

520,000 551,972 
720,386 1,250,890 

100,902 
210,567 210,567 

930,953 520,000 2,114,331 

(930,953) (1,295,516) 

1,659,259 1,659,259 

1,659,259 1,659,259 

728,306 363,743 

735,506 

$ 728,306 $ $ 1,099,249 



ASSETS 

Cash 

Due to bondholders 

CITY OF DODGE CITY, KANSAS 

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS 
AGENCY FUND 

December 31,2011 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements. 
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Special 
obligation 

debt service 

$ 8,251 

$ 8,251 


